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Telford & Wrekin Council 
 

Unaudited Statement of Accounts 
 

2021/22 
 

Financial Statements 
 

 
Narrative Report 
  
 The Narrative Report provides a summary of the Council’s performance for 2021/22 and compliments 

the detailed Financial Statements in providing a fair, balanced and understandable analysis of the year.  
It comprises the following sections: 

 
A. Organisational Overview 

− Introduction 
− Background Information 
− The Council’s Service & Financial Planning Cycle 
− An Overview of the Budget 2021/22 
− Workforce Analysis 

B. Governance & Transparency 
C. Operational Model 
D. Risks and Opportunities 
E. Performance 

− Revenue Outturn for 2021/22 
− Issues Highlighted during 2021/22 
− IAS Note 19 – Retirement Benefits 
− Capital Outturn 2021/22 
− Provisions 
− Achievements during 2021/22 

F. Strategic Outlook 
G. COVID-19  
H. Looking Ahead 
I. Basis of Preparation 
J. Statement of Accounts – Explanatory Overview 
K. Further Information 

 
A.   ORGANISATIONAL OVERVIEW 
1. Introduction 
Telford & Wrekin Council is a Unitary Authority created in 1998.  Situated in Shropshire, the 
Borough is a mix of urban and rural areas including Telford New Town, the market town of 
Newport and the UNESCO World Heritage Site, the Ironbridge Gorge – the birthplace of the 
industrial revolution.  Surrounded by countryside and farmland, more than two thirds of the 
Borough is classified as rural.   
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3. Council’s Service & Financial Planning Cycle 
 

 
 
Reports to Council, Cabinet and Audit Committee can be accessed via the Council’s web site. 
 
4. An Overview of the Budget 2021/22 
The Council has a rolling Medium Term Financial planning process.  This was updated for 
2021/22 formally by reports to the Council’s Cabinet in January and February 2021 with final 
decisions taken at Full Council on 4 March 2021.  The impact of Covid-19 is discussed in 
Section G below. 
 
The decisions on the medium term budget strategy at Full Council reflect the outcome of 
consultation following publication of the budget proposals on the 7 January 2021. 
 
The provisional funding settlement for 2021/22 was announced, on the 17 December 2020, 
followed by the final settlement on the 4 February 2021.  This saw Revenue Support Grant 
increasing by just £0.055m and a significant reduction to New Homes Bonus grant.  As 
anticipated the Council faced a budget shortfall and after delivering £126m of savings since 
2009/10 further savings of £5.9m were required in 2021/22.   
 
The agreed strategy for 2021/22 to meet the savings requirement and to continue to invest 
in the area to support both the community and businesses is:  

• a savings package delivering an additional £5.9m from general fund budgets;  
• £2.5m additional investment into Adult Social Care 
• £0.5m investment into safer communities 
• A commitment to work with partner organisations to seek new solutions to deliver 

services to minimise the impact of cuts; 
• To continue to deliver jobs and investments and provide additional income 

business rates, council tax and New Homes Bonus. 
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C.  OPERATIONAL MODEL 
Despite the severe financial constraints, Telford & Wrekin is a progressive Council with 
ambitions to improve the Borough and lives of residents.  The organisation will continue to 
change and develop in response to the challenges we face, particularly the need to make 
further savings.  At the heart of our model has been 4 key delivery themes: 
1. Solving problems and promoting social responsibility to reduce demand for 
services – the Council can no longer afford to, neither is it right that the Council can fix 
every family or community challenge.  It is the role of the Council and its partners to work 
with and support families and communities and so reduce demand on public services. 
 
2. Challenging and changing, reviewing and reimagining how we do things – 
despite the savings we have had to make, we have worked hard to avoid simply cutting 
services to balance the books – this would be the easy thing to do.  We have had to be 
creative and find new ways to deliver services and ensure that our services are as efficient 
as possible.  For example, working with Town and Parish Councils, community groups and 
organisations to deliver libraries, community centres, markets, children’s centres and youth 
services.  Examples include “Feed the Birds” scheme to tackle social isolation and “Bench to 
Bench” to encourage people into activity. 
 
3. Reducing our Dependency on Government Grants – this is an essential part of our 
financial strategy; to increase and maximise income into the Council from sources other than 
Government Grants, for example the Solar Farm, NuPlace (a wholly owned housing company) 
and securing external funding. 
 
4. Being a Modern Organisation, with Modern Practices and where we always get 
the Basics Right 

- Workforce – the Council has a hard working and dedicated workforce committed 
to the values of service and making a difference to the community.  Our workforce 
strategy sets out how we will work to continually support the workforce to ensure 
that they have the right skills and knowledge to deliver services. 

- Technology – investing in ICT to keep our systems up to date and enable us to 
drive efficiencies and savings as well as ensuring that the ICT network is robust 
and secure. 

- Customer Focus – improving the customer journey and outcomes by driving 
digital transformation including the enablement of “self-service” at the customer’s 
convenience through “My Telford”.  Full detail is in the Council’s digital strategy. 

- Performance – our performance framework tracks the progress we are making 
to delivery our priorities.  This is an essential part of our approach to evidence 
based decision making. 

- Financial Management – the Medium Term Financial Strategy sets out how we 
will use our money to deliver our priorities and value for money, including where 
we will invest more in our priorities and where we are still required to make savings 
and deliver efficiencies. 
 

D.  RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES 
The strategic risk register identifies the substantive issues which need to be managed but 
which could impact negatively on delivery of the Council’s priorities.  The key strategic risks 
identified for 2021/22 are listed below, with details of the steps that the Council is taking to 
manage these key risks included in our risk register. 
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The Council has ready access to borrowings from both the Money Markets and Public Works 
Loans Board (PWLB), which lends to Local Authorities at very competitive rates.  
 
Overall the Council’s net indebtedness is £229.3m (inclusive of equity investments) at 31st 
March 2022 which is a reduction of £14.8m from the previous year due in part to an increase 
in investments held. 
 
The Council has a 28 year (from 2006/7) PFI contract in place for the building and servicing 
of school and leisure facilities at Hadley Learning Community and Queensway (which provides 
Education, Health and Social Care packages) for £289m. The costs of the contract are being 
met from a combination of Government support, school contributions and Council support. 
The Council has approved a budget strategy which makes provision for its commitments. In 
2021/22 the Authority made payments of £10,845,497 (£10,689,927 in 2020/21) in respect 
of this PFI contract with Interserve Limited. The Authority is committed to making payments 
estimated at £9,071,500 per annum (index linked, starting point September 2006) until the 
contract expiry date of 2034 and receives £5.9m per annum from the Government to help 
offset this cost. 
 
The Council entered into a 10 year Telford Land Deal with Homes England (HE) and Ministry 
of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) in March 2016 through which 
HE/MHCLG have committed to invest £44.5m from the sale of Government owned land in 
Telford to invest in the local area supporting the delivery of new homes, jobs and commercial 
floor space. The total capital expenditure for 2021/22 includes expenditure relating to this 
deal. 
 
 
 

Government Grants
£23.8m

Prudential Borrowing
£20.3m

Capital Receipts
£5.4m

Revenue
£0.5m

Other External Sources
£7.4m

Sources of Finance 2021/22 £57.4m



19 

5. Provisions (see Note 26) 
Restructure Provision - the accounts include a provision to meet committed severance 
costs which relate to the ongoing restructuring programme which is part of the Council’s 
strategy for delivering savings. The amount in the provision at 31 March 2022 was £0.298m. 
It is anticipated that an element of this will be funded from Capital Receipts in 2022/23.  

Single Status - Single Status is a national pay and conditions agreement for staff employed 
under NJC terms and conditions, who form a significant proportion of the Council’s workforce.  
The agreement is effective from 1st April 2007, however the process is not yet complete and 
it has been necessary to include a provision against the potential costs in the 2021/22 
accounts, as was the case last year and previous years.  The total amount in the provision at 
31 March 2022 was £12.52m which includes an element relating to schools.  
NDR Appeals – under the new arrangements for the retention of business rates, authorities 
are required to make a provision for refunding ratepayers who successfully appeal against 
the rateable value of their property on the rating list.  Based on information relating to 
outstanding appeals provided by the Valuation Office, £2.614m is estimated as the amount 
required to set aside for this purpose in the 2021/22 accounts (£8.1m in 2020/21). Telford & 
Wrekin Council’s proportion of this is £1.281 (49%) (£4.0m in 2020/21). 
 
6. Achievements During 2021/22  
Through 2021/22 Telford & Wrekin Council continued to drive the efficiency and effectiveness 
of its services: 
 
COVID-19 
Responding to the pandemic to support our residents and local communities continued in 
21/22, ensuring that vulnerable residents were supported. There was a shift in focus in 
December to support the delivery of “booster vaccinations”. The Council established a walk-
in vaccination centre within just four days of omicron striking and established a programme 
supporting targeting communities with low vaccination rates. Taking an evidence-led 
approach we were aware of which communities had low take up rates took a mobile 
vaccination centre to them using aka “Betty the Bus”. The areas Betty was visiting were 
promoted through a very targeted “comms” strategy. This approach saw a significant increase 
in vaccination take up in these areas.  
 
People 
Children and Adults 
 
Since Securing ‘Outstanding’ for Children’s Safeguarding in the latest OFSTED inspection of 
children safeguarding services completed in January 2020, judged the service to be 
‘Outstanding’.  The Council joined the DfE Strengthening Families Project in October 2020 
and will receive over £2m from the DFE to support this programme over a three year period. 
We are regarded as exemplary when it comes to contextual safeguarding, with Ofsted 
noting our strong offer to children and young people. The Council has also been described 
as a ‘national trailblazer’ by the national Care Leaver Covenant, around the support given 
to young people leaving care. 
 
In addition, the Council unanimously agreed to commission its own Independent Inquiry into 
child sexual exploitation once it became clear that the Government led inquiry into CSE was 
not going to focus on Telford. An Independent Inquiry, however, was what victims were 
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asking for. We expect the Inquiry to report in summer 2022. The Council will learn lessons 
from the Inquiry report and, working with our partners and the local government family, will 
implement any recommendations made. 
 
Strengthening Communities Adult Social Care (ASC) - we work on behalf of local 
people in an integrated way with partners both in the NHS and across our vibrant community 
and voluntary sector which the Council have continued to invest in over many years. This 
investment has enabled ASC to maximise the use of the community assets preventing too 
early access to funded ASC support. Through Telford & Wrekin Integrated Health Partnership 
(TWIPP) we have developed an integrated Health and Social Care Rapid Response Team 
working to reduce unnecessary hospital admissions. Our performance on delayed transfer of 
care is better than the national and regional average, and we are in the best quartile 
nationally. We recently secured recognition from the Co-operative Council Innovation 
Network for this work.  
We run local booked appointments from local hubs providing advice, information and where 
necessary more formal assessment freeing up time for more complex work to be undertaken 
by our social work staff who are linked to GP surgeries. Over 500 staff and volunteers have 
been trained on how to ‘make every contact count’ - to raise lifestyle issues with an individual 
and to direct them to further support.  
 
Our in-house ASC Shared Lives service has been rated as ‘Outstanding’ by the CQC and is 
an example of how we have used our resources creatively to avoid higher cost service 
provision by providing post hospital discharge re-ablement via Shared Lives. 
 
A key objective for the Council is for every child to be in a good or outstanding school and 
making at least good progress with 81% school (academic year 2021/22) being judged as 
good or outstanding by OFSTED. Whist overall a positive picture, there are a small number 
of secondary schools which need to improve to achieve this level. Generally, the attainment 
of pupils at each of the Key Stages is at least in line with national averages and well above 
this across a number of individual indicators. 
 
The Government has set targets which have been adopted by the Council to work with 
families who need additional support through the “Troubled Families” programme. In 2021/22 
we had a target to work with 237 which we achieved.  
 
Health 
Improving the health and lifestyle of the population remains a significant challenge in the 
Borough. Although there are still areas of challenge, progress continues to be made with 
breastfeeding initiation, reducing smoking and reducing excess weight. We are pleased that 
teenage pregnancy is the lowest it has ever been, but again, this remains a local priority. 
 
Telford and Wrekin Integrated Place Partnership (TWIPP) - our local placed based board 
working with partners around the integration of health and social care which links in with the 
wider Shropshire and Telford and Wrekin Sustainability and Transformation Partnership 
(STP). TWIPP enables us to work across our local health and social care economy to develop 
more integrated ways of working for local people and collaboratively make the best use of 
the ‘Telford pound’. This work also integrates a Community Asset Based Approach across 
health and social care. One example of this is the introduction of ‘Live Well’ which is an online 
directory of services used by all partners and community members in Telford but developed 
by the Council on behalf of partners. 
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Place and Environment 
Our ‘Pride in Our Community’ Programme is the core driver of our approach to this priority 
with the Council investing £45m, spread over a 3 year programme to maintain and improve 
the green spaces, neighbourhoods, street lighting, roads, structures and footpaths across the 
borough.  

- Continuing to invest in road improvements and sustaining traffic flow around the 
borough as the economy and population grows. ‘Overall satisfaction with highways 
and transport’ is third best of unitary authorities.  

- Investing £1.6m on a 3G pitch - encouraging participation in our most deprived 
communities.  

We have also established a £1m fund to support ‘Pride in Our High Streets’ to support nine 
high streets. This has delivered:  

• Community events and physical regeneration - including improved parking, lighting, 
shop fronts and a series of ‘false window’ murals to enhance the appearance of empty 
properties.  
• A training programme to improve the commercial skills of our high street businesses.  
• Young Enterprise Challenge - young people shared their ideas to develop High Streets 
with 3 schools receiving between £10-£20k to bring their business idea to life, including 
a ‘Retro Shack shop’.  
• Social enterprise pop up shops - the first ‘The Forge’, used an empty retail unit in 
Wellington and was so popular, it moved to a permanent base in the town. 

Working with our partners and sharing our business intelligence has helped inform a 
programme of work called ‘Safer & Stronger Communities’  Its primary focus is on tackling 
the route causes of crime particularly focussing on those neighbourhoods where the data 
shows our investment will have the most impact. The Council actively engages and listens to 
our communities through our Residents’ Survey, our Community Panel and tailored 
engagement programmes such as our recent Safer, Stronger community workshops. These 
particular workshops have resulted in: 

• Free Friday night football with hundreds of young people now regularly taking 
part 

• Self defence classes for women and girls 
• Substantial investment into our CCTV coverage 
• New Veteran Calm Cafes to help with mental health support 
• Sequence dancing sessions; and  
• Boxing classes 

 
Climate Emergency - in the summer of 2019, Telford & Wrekin Council declared a climate 
emergency and resolved to go carbon neutral by 2030. The Council has already done much 
to reduce its carbon footprint by 64% since 2005 through a number of measures, including:  

• Solar Farm - bringing income to the Council but as importantly saving the production 
of CO2 emissions;  

• Procurement of seven fully electric commercial vehicles;  
• Transferring to a green energy tariff;  
• Replacing 98% of street lights with LED;  
• Disposing of 27 operational buildings; 
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We are achieving our waste recycling targets and our new Household Recycling Centre at 
Hortonwood is getting excellent customer feedback and usage. We have virtually no landfill 
left in our Borough with all household waste either being recycled or being burnt for energy 
usage.  As part of its waste strategy the Council introduced a kerbside collection of kitchen 
waste has been around 100 tonnes per week which is a gross saving 0.5 tonne of CO2 for 
each tonne collected. 
 
Economy 
Telford & Wrekin is one of the fastest growing local authority areas outside of the 
South East with an annual population growth in the region of 1.2% - twice the England rate 
for the past 5 years.  We work really hard to accommodate this rising population by 
ensuring housing supply keeps up with demand.  We are consistently ranked in the 
Centre for Cities’ top three local authorities for housing growth. 
 
THE Council is investing to create the opportunities to support new businesses, including the 
delivery of new start up/incubation space via land acquired at Hortonwood West where the 
Council is investing profit share earnt through the success of Telford Land Deal. This is 
alongside investment into site preparation and power upgrades to support investors acquiring 
suitable land quickly. Last year we completed the region’s only agri-tech business park. A 
multi-million pound investment by the Council, the LEP, Homes England and Harper Adams 
University. The Park will consolidate the borough’s reputation as a national investment 
hotspot for agri-tech and for food science. 
 
All of this is shaped and driven by an approach to inclusive growth which through initiatives 
such as Job Box, a Council funded support service for the unemployed, has seen: 
 

• deliver a 50% reduction in youth unemployment 
• buck the trend on regional and national unemployment during the pandemic 
• And, deliver a 42% reduction in NEETS  

 
Fibre broadband infrastructure is key to the economic growth of the borough and underpins 
the benefits that digital connectivity brings. 98% coverage has been achieved and the 
authority is committed to getting quality broadband to as many as possible in a journey to 
100%. Other existing initiatives beyond the build programme are in place and new 
opportunities are being explored over the coming months. 
 
Supporting this work is the Telford Land Deal - to drive disposal of Homes England assets 
in the borough, the Council secured stewardship of these assets generating capital receipts 
for Homes England and the Treasury whilst bringing development sites to the market and so 
attracting inward investors and retaining existing businesses that would otherwise have 
sought larger premises outside the borough.  
 
Organisation 
By the end of 2021/22, the Council had delivered budget savings of £134m. Despite the 
financial challenges the Council continues to face, our budget strategy has been to sustain 
essential public services. We have worked hard to develop new models of service delivery to 
ensure continued delivery of our priorities with a key part of our strategy to become a 
commercial council and to generate income to invest and protect front-line services. Effective 
budget management has allowed us to deliver on our priorities. 
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The Council actively seeks external challenge to drive our continuous improvement agenda. 
In June 2021, a Local Government Association Corporate Peer Review was completed into 
the Council. The team concluded that:  
 

“the Council should be very proud of what it is achieving, it is very ambitious, top 
performing in key areas and striving constantly to deliver for local people.  The authority 
has strong and effective political and managerial leadership and that officers and members 
had worked phenomenally hard to get the organisation to where it is.”  

 
They also said: 

“The authority is held in extremely high regard as a partner, founded upon credibility and 
a convincing track record of delivery, and it is very highly trusted” 

 
Our financial position is built on a track record of taking on new ventures to deliver income 
to the Council and protect front-line services: 

• A solar farm providing £4.4m profit over 25 years.  
• The Council’s wholly owned housing company, NuPlace, now has more than 400 homes 

available for private rent. Demand for these properties is high and are oversubscribed. 
In a recent survey of NuPlace tenants - 96% said they would recommend NuPlace to 
their family and friends. 

• Established a Growth Fund to invest in development of premises for businesses to 
encourage job creation and retention as well as generating additional rental income 
and business rates income. 

 
“Securing external funding” – we are a non-constituent member of the West Midlands 
Combined Authority and are actively working through this to maximise future opportunities 
for the borough to build on the £3.7m grant already secured from the WMCA. This grant is 
to kick-start building new homes on stalled brownfield sites in the borough and will see around 
540 new homes built as well as bringing ‘derelict’ brownfield land back into use and creating 
240 jobs. Work on these sites has stalled because of high costs to developers to get the land 
ready for building. 
 
F.  STRATEGIC OUTLOOK  
The Medium Term Financial Strategy was updated for 2022/23 formally by reports to the 
Council’s Cabinet in January and February 2022 with final decisions taken at Full Council on 
3 March 2022.  The impact of Covid-19 is discussed in Section G below. 
 
Savings proposals are developed as soon as they arise and consultation and engagement 
with our community and partners takes place throughout the year in a more meaningful and 
timely way to deliver more creative solutions.   From the ongoing engagement with local 
people over many years, we know that the people of Telford & Wrekin want to live: - in a 
safe community; in a clean environment; in a place with good roads and pavements; where 
there are first class schools and education facilities; where there are excellent and accessible 
hospital and GP services; where they have a job and there is a thriving economy.  These local 
priorities form a basis for resource allocation as part of the Medium Term Financial Planning 
process. 
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Feedback from the Local Government Association Peer Review received in June 2021 stated 
that “the Council has responded to the Covid-19 pandemic and at the same time continued 
to fulfil ‘business as usual’ – thus maintaining delivery in circumstances well outside the 
norm”.    Further, “The Council, communities and partners can all be extremely proud of the 
COVID-19 response they have been involved in, in a series of waves, focussed on protecting 
and supporting the most vulnerable.” 
 
Importantly the Council did not make any unplanned use of reserves in 2021/22 and has 
retained a prudent level of balances set aside which will support the delivery of the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy as we will continue to feel the longer-term impacts of COVID and, at 
the same time also, face the uncertainties of planned changes to the local government 
funding system.   
 
During 2021/22 the Government provided a range of COVID financial support packages.  
These included additional funding to support service pressures (both income and expenditure) 
caused by the pandemic, funding for specific measures and initiatives, and grants paid to 
local businesses.  In accordance with the Code of Practice, where the authority has the ability 
to determine/influence the grant scheme criteria it is said to be acting as a Principal.  Where 
the authority has acted as principal, transactions are included in the financial statements and 
on this basis, the majority of COVID grants are recognised in the CIES.  However there are 
some instances where the Council has acted as an agent i.e. the Council has simply acted as 
an intermediary and passed the funds onto recipients following government criteria.  Where 
the Council has acted as an agent, transactions are not reflected in the authority’s financial 
statements.   
The Government continued to provide an element of business rates discount for the retail, 
leisure, hospitality and nursery sectors in 2021/22 and announced a new COVID-19 Additional 
Relief Fund (CARF) to support businesses affected by the pandemic.  Based on estimates, an 
upfront payment of compensation for the cost of these reliefs was given to local authorities 
via a Section 31 Grant in 2021/22.  Due to Collection Fund accounting rules, the additional 
costs of these reliefs resulted in a Collection Fund deficit in 2021/22.  Therefore, £7.32m of 
the upfront payment received in 2021/22 has been set aside in reserves at year end to offset 
this deficit in 2022/23.  This and other COVID grants has resulted in an increase in reserves 
at 31 March 2022. 
 
H.  LOOKING AHEAD 
The Council ended 2021/22 in a positive position, despite the significant financial pressures 
experienced during the year.  This is a solid basis upon which to move into 2022/23 and 
demonstrates ongoing financial resilience.   

 
The funding outlook for the medium term is very uncertain but will clearly continue to be 
challenging.  Due to the impact of COVID19, the major planned reforms to the local 
government finance system were postponed with the earliest date for implementation now 
being April 2023 – although there is currently no clear timetable and limited time for 
Government to undertake the necessary work and consultation changes could still, 
potentially, be implemented from next year making forward financial projections very difficult.  
There is currently no detailed information available to indicate how a new system might 
operate and the impact for individual authorities.  There are also anticipated changes to the 
New Homes Bonus system with consultation expected during 2022 and a revised scheme 
potentially being introduced from April 2023.  Further, Adult Social Care Reform is in progress 
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however the level of ongoing funding to support the Adult Social Care pressures has not been 
confirmed. 

 
Using the information that was available when the 2022/23 budget was set in March, it was 
anticipated that the Council would need to deliver the £9.9m savings already identified for 
2022/23 and 2023/24 plus around £4.5m of further savings over the three years 2023/24 to 
2025/26, taking the total savings to £148m by the end of 2025/26.  However, given current 
very high rates of inflation the budget gap is expected to increase further unless the 
Government makes additional ongoing funding available. 
 
It is clear that the financial climate ahead will still be one of significant financial challenge. 
 
I.  BASIS OF PREPARATION 
The Council prepares its Statement of Accounts on a going concern basis, under the 
assumption that it will continue to operate into the foreseeable future.  Disclosures are 
included in the Statement of Accounts based on an assessment of their materiality. Local 
Authorities can only be discontinued under statute. 
 
Group Accounts – The Council’s wholly owned Housing Investment Company, NuPlace Ltd, 
was incorporated on 1 April 2015. These accounts consolidate the Council and NuPlace’s 
financial statements for both 2021/22 and 2020/21.  The accounts for 2021/22 include an 
increased number of transactions as NuPlace’s trading continues to grow.  
 
The Council has examined the relationship with other partners including West Mercia Energy 
(see Note 56 to the accounts) and has concluded that group accounts only need to be 
prepared in respect of NuPlace.  
 

J.  STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS – EXPLANATORY OVERVIEW 
The Statement of Accounts features the Expenditure and Funding Analysis, which does not 
form part of the Primary Statements and is included as a Note, and four Primary Statements 
reporting on the Council’s core activities plus Group Accounts.  
The Primary Statements include: 

• the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;  
• the Movement in Reserves Statement;  
• the Balance Sheet; and 
• the Cash Flow Statement. 
 

The purpose of each is briefly described within this narrative report and they are followed by 
notes explaining the statements and any specific restatements required.  
 
The main statements are supplemented by the Collection Fund Account, which receives all 
council tax and business rates income before passing this income to the Council, the 
Government, Shropshire Combined Fire Authority and the West Mercia Police & Crime 
Commissioner as appropriate.  
  
The Council’s accounts for the year 2021/22 are set out in the remainder of the report.  They 
consist of: 
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… The Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) – this is not one of the Primary 
Statements but is included as a note to the accounts. The EFA shows how annual 
expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, rents, council tax 
and business rates) by the local authority in comparison with those resources consumed 
or earned by the authority in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It 
also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the 
Council’s services. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted 
accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. The EFA shows an adjustment of £29.252m to move from an 
underspend of £0.048m to a deficit of £29.203 in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. This adjustment reflects technical accounting requirements and 
does not alter the underlying position of £0.048m underspend reported in the Outturn 
Report to Cabinet. 

… The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account - covering revenue income 
and expenditure during the year on all Council services. This statement reports on how 
the Authority performed financially during the year and whether its operations resulted 
in a surplus or deficit.  This shows a deficit for the year of £29.203m (after technical 
accounting adjustments referred to above) compared with the outturn report which 
shows an underspend of £0.048m. The reasons for this difference relate to technical 
transactions required to put the accounts on an IFRS basis, including capital grants offset 
by losses on disposal of fixed assets, depreciation, Revenue Expenditure Financed from 
Capital Under Statute (REFCUS), impairments and pensions. These technical 
accounting adjustments do not impact on either General Fund Balances or 
Council Tax.  

… The Movement in Reserves Statement - which brings together recognised 
movements in and out of Reserves including the General Fund Balance (which stands at 
£5.107m at 31st March 2022). This statement represents the Authority’s net worth and 
shows its spending power.  Reserves are analysed into two categories: usable and 
unusable. 

… The Balance Sheet - this is a “snapshot” of the Authority’s financial position which sets 
out the financial position of the Council on 31st March 2022 and shows net assets 
increasing by  £42.648m Council to £47.046m at the end of the year. 

… The Cash Flow Statement - summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from 
both revenue and capital transactions with third parties, analysing them into operating, 
investing and financing activities, and shows a net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
of £15.871m. 

… The Notes to the Core Financial Statements - provide further information supporting 
the financial statements including the Statement of Accounting Policies and provide 
further detailed information on specific items. 

… The Collection Fund – is the statutory account in which income from business rates 
and council tax is held temporarily, pending payment to the precepting authorities. There 
is a increase on the council tax fund balance of £2.996m for the year and the Council’s 
share of the surplus was £3.389m at 31st March 2022. The localisation of business rates 
means that we also show similar information in respect of this. The business rates show 
a reduction in the deficit balance on the account for the year of £22.337m and the 
Council’s share of the deficit was £5.78m at 31st March 2022. 
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1. Introduction 
 

1.1 Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 the Council is required to produce an Annual 
Governance Statement to accompany the Statement of Accounts which is approved by the 
Audit Committee.  

 
             The Annual Governance Statement outlines that the Council has been adhering to the Local 

Code of Corporate Governance, continually reviewing policies and procedures to maintain 
and demonstrate good corporate governance and that it has in place robust systems of 
internal control. 

 
             The Council has adopted the Code of Corporate Governance which is consistent with the 

principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework – Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government.   

 

 
 
 
CIPFA’s Principles of Good Governance  

 
2. Standards of Governance 

 

2.1 The Council expects all of its members, officers, partners and contractors to adhere to the 
highest standards of public service with particular reference to the employee and Members’ 
Code of Conduct, Constitution, Corporate Vision, Priorities and Vision as well as applicable 
statutory requirements. 
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3. Scope of Responsibility 
 

a. Telford & Wrekin Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards. The Council needs to demonstrate that public 
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively to secure continuous improvement.  

 
b. To meet this responsibility, the Council puts in place proper governance arrangements for 

overseeing what it does including putting in place proper arrangements for the governance 
of its affairs including risk management, the requirements of regulations and ensuring the 
effective exercise of its functions. These arrangements are intended to make sure that the 
Council does the right things, in the right way, for the right people, in a timely, open and 
accountable manner. The Council takes into consideration all systems, processes, policies, 
cultures and values that direct and control the way in which we work and through which we 
account, engage and lead our communities.   

 
4.    The Governance Framework 

 

a. The governance framework allows the Council to monitor how they are achieving their 
strategic aims and ambitions and how this contributes to the delivery of its vision, priorities  
and values: 

 
 

 
 
 
4.2 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 

manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve priorities 
and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of 
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to 
appropriately identify, quantify and manage the risks to the achievement of the Council’s 
priorities, objectives and policies. 

 
5. Review of Effectiveness 
 

5.1 Telford & Wrekin Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of the governance arrangements including the system of internal control.  The 
review of the effectiveness is informed by:- 
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5.2      The Council has faced continued challenges during 2021/22 particularly in respect to the 

ongoing effects of the COVID-19 pandemic.    
 
  The pandemic has meant changes to working practices which have required a greater degree 

of flexibility and risk based decision making at lower levels in the authority. However changes 
have been made within the boundaries of good governance.  

 
  The Council continues to deliver services to its community using new and developing 

practices. Underpinning this is support/instruction from central government and continued 
risk management from the corporate Gold Group.  

 
5.3  The Council recognises the ongoing importance of information governance and formalised 

its Information Governance Framework. The main focus of the Information Governance Team 
in 2021/22 has been to: 

 
• Ensure the Council’s continued compliance with the requirements of the General Data 

Protection Regulations (GDPR) / Data Protection Act 2018 
• Updating relevant policies and procedures 
• Support on the prevention and investigation of data breaches 
• Provide advice and guidance in relation to new/revised way of working adopted by 

Council services  
 
  The Information Governance Team has continued to report to the Audit Committee and 

Senior Management Team during the year including information on responses to information 
rights requests and data security breaches. During 2021/22 no enforcement action has been 
taken by the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) against the Council in respect to data 
breaches. 
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 5.4 The Chief Executive, Executive Directors, Directors and Service Delivery Managers have 
signed annual assurance certificates confirming that the governance framework has been 
operating within their areas of responsibility, subject to the actions outlined in Annex 1. 
Additional assurance has been requested for 2021/22 from the Senior Management Team 
and Service Delivery Managers in respect to controls/risk management measures that have 
been in place during the year. Internal Audit plan to undertake sample testing of completed 
certificates to provide additional assurance that adequate controls/risk management 
measures have been operating in 2021/22. 

 
 5.5 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require a review of the effectiveness of the system 

of internal control. This review is informed by the work of Internal Audit, management, other 
internal assurance services and the External Auditors’ review. The Internal Audit Annual 
Report 2021/2022 will set out the Internal Audit opinion.  

 
 5.6 The Council has been advised on the implications of the review of the effectiveness of the 

governance framework by Cabinet, Standards Committee, Audit Committee, Scrutiny, Senior 
Managers, Internal Audit and external review. The Chief Internal Auditor concludes that the 
review of the governance arrangements provides a reasonable level of assurance that these 
arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance 
framework.  

 
 Internal Audit Work 
 
 One of Internal Audits key objectives, as detailed in the Internal Audit Charter is ‘To review 

the effectiveness of the governance, risk management and control processes of the Council 
to aid improvement, provide a level of assurance and an opinion on them to the Council.’
  

 The work of Internal Audit is based on risk and the scope of each audit assignment, as a 
minimum, includes assessment of the governance, risk management and control 
arrangements put in place by management.  

 
 Despite some resource challenges, Internal Audit work have completed 51% of the revised 

risk based Annual Internal Audit Plan. 
 
 Internal Audit have ensured the Chair/Audit Committee and Senior Management Team have 

been kept informed of audit resource/work throughout the year. 
 
 Other Sources of Assurance 
 
 As stated above, reliance has been placed on other sources of assurance in 2021/22 with 

respect to the Chief Internal Auditors opinion. Other sources of assurance have been 
obtained from in year activity but also by reflecting on past opinions and the basis of these. 

 
 2021/22 has seen the Council consistently recognised as a well performing Council by a 

number of external bodies. Below is a summary of the recognition received. 
 
 The Local Government Association (LGA) peer review panel were very impressed with the 

Council and how it is run. They reported: 
 

“The council can be very proud of what it is achieving, with it clearly being very ambitious, 
top-performing in key areas and striving constantly to deliver for local people.”  

 
“Telford & Wrekin fights for Telford and Wrekin’ is a strong theme that came across during 
the course of our work, particularly from partner organisations.”  

 



35 
 

 The Council was named Cooperative Council of the Year in July 2021 by the LGA. 
 
 In September 2021, the Council were named Council of the Year by the Association for Public 

Service Excellence (APSE). 
 
 The Council’s Executive Director for Children’s Services was named Corporate Director of 

the Year at the MJ awards. This followed the Council’s children services outstanding 
inspection by Ofsted in 2020. 

 
 The Council’s Adult Social Care team were rated ‘excellent’ during a peer review by the 

Association of Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS). ADASS stated “Telford has 
exceptional adult social care operational delivery and partnerships relationships and is in a 
strong position to position itself as the leader of the population health, economic restoration 
and maximising the digital inclusion offer at the local place”. 

 
 In addition, assurance has been provided by the following: 
 

- Telford & Wrekin Council has a sound track record in respect to how it is run. This is 
important to note and is reflected in the 2021/22 audit opinion given. General risk 
management identifies ‘likelihood’ as a key determinant of the level of risk associated with 
an action/entity. Given that the Councils track record demonstrates strong governance 
arrangements and sound financial management, the likelihood of this changing 
considerably in the space of 12 months is relatively low. 

 
- The Councils External Auditors have met with the Section 151 officer and Chief Internal 

Auditor throughout 2021/22 and have also attended Audit Committee meetings. During 
this time the External Auditor has not expressed any specific concern on the governance 
and/or financial arrangements operating within the Council. 

 
- Other examples of assurance obtained in year include: 

 
• Shortlisted for Council and Senior Leadership Team of the Year by the Municipal 

Journal 
• Regular internal quality monitoring activity across many services 
• Family safeguarding peer review 
• Regular benchmarking undertaken in Adult Social Care 
• ADASS Peer review of Adult Social Care commissioning 
• Legal Services Lexcel accreditation 
• Completion of statutory returns, VAT returns, and grant claims, etc. 
• Regular IT penetration testing and security auditing 
• External scrutiny, reviews and inspections from the Home Office  
• Highways contract audit 
• Environmental Scrutiny Committee work on flood risk management 
• Completion of performance development discussions with staff 
• Regular performance, contract and financial monitoring 
• CQC inspection in My Options  

 
 Assurance obtained by reflecting on the past 3 years includes: 
 

- The Chief Internal Auditors opinion has been that there a reasonable level of assurance 
that the governance arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in 
accordance with the governance framework. 

 
- The External Auditor has stated that: 



36 
 

 
• Final accounts have been produced on time and in line with best practice 
• An unqualified opinion has been given in the financial statements 
• Financial statements comply with statutory requirements 
• Financial statements give a true and fair view of the Councils financial position 
• Proper arrangements are in place for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources  
 

 In the Chief Internal Auditors opinion the above assurance activity reflects that sound 
governance arrangements are in place as a number of the points above would not have been 
possible without adequate governance foundations being in place and embedded. 

 
 There has been no significant instances of fraud, poor risk management, poor financial 

management, etc. that would lead the Chief Internal Auditor to believe poor governance 
practices have been in place. 

  
 However, as part of the AGS certification process, there have been areas identified that do 

require development. Attached as Annex 1 is an agreed action plan to address these areas 
for development and ensure continuous improvement. 

 
 5.7 Issues from the previous action plan (2020/21) that have been addressed or mainstreamed 

have been deleted and those that continue to be addressed are included in 2021/22 action 
plan. 

 
 5.8 The Senior Management Team has monitored implementation of the 2020/21 actions and 

reported back to the Audit Committee in January 2022. 
 

 5.9 Detailed below is a statement explaining how the Council has complied with the Code of 
Corporate Governance and meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015 and CIPFA Code on the Principles of Good Governance.  

 
5.10 Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and 

respecting the rule of the law. 
 
5.10.1 Members and officers, in the main, recognise the importance of compliance with the 

Constitution, specifically Financial and Contract Rules; Procurement Regulations, Scheme of 
Delegation, Codes of Conduct and Gifts & Hospitality Policy. However, some improvements 
are needed in this area and recommendations have been included in the 2021/22 AGS action 
plan. 

 
5.10.2 There is ongoing training, both classroom based and via the on-line learning platform (OLLIE) 

for Codes of Conduct, Equality Awareness, Leadership & Governance and Contract 
Procedure Rules/Procurement. 

 
5.10.3 The Council has an Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy, supported by the Whistleblowing (Speak 

Up) Policy, encouraging internal referrals. The Council has a zero tolerance policy in relation 
to fraud and corruption and it is service management’s responsibility to ensure there are 
adequate controls in their areas to ensure the opportunities for fraud are minimised. It is 
everyone’s responsibility to report suspicions and the Whistleblowing (Speak Up) Policy 
supports this internally. Internal Audit along with the Investigations Team undertakes 
proactive fraud work based on a fraud risk register and/or other intelligence. Other specific 
anti-fraud and corruption activities are undertaken by Trading Standards. An annual report 
on anti-fraud and corruption activities and an update to the Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy 
and Whistleblowing (Speak Up) Policy is presented to the Audit Committee. 
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5.10.4 Officers comply with their professional organisations’ codes of conduct when delivering 
services. 

 
5.10.5 All Internal Audit reviews consist of an ethics questionnaire that is sent to a sample of staff in 

specific teams to demonstrate their understanding of key corporate policies.   
 
             Ethic questionnaire findings have been shared when discussing individual audits with 

relevant Service Delivery Managers and Directors and taken to SMT as part of reporting 
corporate recommendations. Summary findings from the ethics work have been included in 
the 2021/22 AGS action plan. 

 
5.10.6 There are both internal and external reviews in social care to monitor compliance with the 

law, e.g. the Care Act, Deprivation of Liberties, Safeguarding and the Mental Health Act.   
 
5.10.7  Human Resource and recruitment polices and processes ensure the Council is fully 

compliant with employment law.  Annual audits are undertaken in these areas and ongoing 
checks take place to ensure compliance with IR35 legislation.  

 
5.10.8 Senior officers meet regularly and work closely with Members to ensure that they understand 

and can undertake their respective roles effectively and legally. 
 
5.10.9 The Cabinet monitors the effectiveness of the governance framework through the 

consideration of regular service and financial management information reports from senior 
management.  Individual Cabinet Members receive regular feedback from senior officers in 
respect to their areas of responsibility on the progress of priorities and objectives.  Issues of 
strategic and corporate importance are referred to Cabinet. 

 
5.10.10 Statutory responsibilities across the Council are discharged openly and proactively, examples 

include having key statutory officers in place, i.e. Head of Paid Service, Data Protection 
Officer, Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer, Director of Children Services, Director of Adult 
Social Services, Director of Public Health and Scrutiny Officer. 

 
5.11    Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
5.11.1 The Executive Director for Housing, Communities & Customer Services is leading on the 

development of a new 10 year vision for the Borough that is being developed with key 
strategic partners. Development work is progressing including resident and partner 
engagement. The vision will be presented to Cabinet in the summer of 2022 for approval.  

 
5.11.2 The Council actively contributes to, and collaborates with, partners to promote good 

governance and achieve the delivery of outcomes through increased joint working.  The 
Council is a member of a number of sub regional partnerships and groups. Many of our 
services are delivered in partnership with other organisations such as West Mercia Energy, 
Town and Parish Councils, voluntary groups, etc. Internal Audit reviewed the arrangements 
for ‘Together 4 Children’ which is a partnership arrangement with three other local authorities. 

 
5.11.3 Regular meetings take place between Children Safeguarding and key partner agencies such 

as the police, Telford & Wrekin CCG, Education and Health.    
 
5.11.4  All Council services feed into transparent reporting processes through council committee 

meetings and this is further supported by the transparency agenda. 
 
5.11.5   Annually the public is consulted on the budget for the forthcoming year. 
 



38 
 

5.11.6  There is regular engagement between Public Health, Telford & Wrekin Clinical Commissioning 
Group (CCG) and Social Care for the future provision of services. 

 
5.11.7 The Scrutiny provision has looked at the development of policy, the decision-making process 

and areas of concern. The subject areas for review will be informed by community 
engagement, direct feedback to members from within the community, the results of review and 
inspection (both external and internal) and areas of policy being developed by the Council. 

 
5.12    Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits. 
 
5.12.1   The Council Plan was refreshed in the autumn 2020. The plan identifies 5 priorities to deliver 

the Council’s organisational vision to ‘Protect, Care and Invest to Create a Better Borough’. 
The Council continues to develop commercial projects to generate income to invest in front 
line services to mitigate the impact of Government cuts and uncertainly over Government 
funding. 

 
5.12.2   Digital transformation and changes in the way we work are intrinsic to the Council’s service 

delivery model.  
  
5.12.3  The Telford & Wrekin Local Plan sets out the Council's vision and strategy for the physical 

planning of the borough up to 2031. A planned review of the Local Plan has been paused as 
the Government announced changes to planning legislation. It is envisaged that the Council 
will publish an updated Local Development Scheme in the spring/summer of 2022. 

 
5.12.4 All service areas have their own service plans which details how they intend to deliver their 

service for the coming year and the risks they face. These plans encompass identifying 
barriers to service objectives being met. 

 
5.12.5 The Council has a commercial strategy / investment strategy that demonstrates clear visions, 

objectives and outcomes. This includes financial, economic, social and environmental issues. 
 
5.12.6 The Councils economic growth strategy supports and drives increased economic productivity. 
 
5.12.7 The financial strategy sets out the short and long-term implications for service delivery across 

the Council. The Service & Financial Planning reports include various papers to Cabinet 
regarding the budget and sets out short/ medium and long-term implications, including the 
capital strategy and saving strategy. 

 
5.12.8 Adult Social Services, in respect of financial management and the implementation of the cost 

improvement plan, have continued to provide updates during the year to SMT and Members. 
 
5.12.9 All Council reports to Members show relevant financial implications and risk. 
 
5.12.10 Implementation of the ICT Strategy has continued, including infrastructure upgrades, the   

ongoing roll-out of Office 365/applications and further security improvements particularly in 
response to spam, phishing/ whaling and ransomware threats.  

 
5.13 Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended 

outcome. 
 
5.13.1  The 2021/22 Service & Financial Strategy including the Treasury Management Plan are 

aligned to the refreshed Council Plan – setting out how our financial resources will deliver the 
Council vision and priorities. 
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5.13.2  Budget plans are produced for all service areas for planning purposes. Budget consultation 
is undertaken annually with Council Members and members of the public. 

 
5.14 Developing the Council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it. 
 
5.14.1 The Workforce Strategy was approved in 2021 and is available to all employees on our 

intranet. The strategy has 5 priorities which were informed by the results of the employee 
survey and consists of the following priorities: 

 
• Our workforce will have the skills and abilities to deliver our priorities and will have the 

opportunity to further develop 
• Our managers will be leaders and will empower staff to deliver our priorities 
• Our organisation will be more diverse and inclusive offering a voice and fair treatment 

for all 
• Our workplace will be healthy and we will support our employees wellbeing 
• Our employment package will be attractive that offers (and will offer) fair terms and 

conditions 
 
5.14.2 Officers understand their respective roles and these are set out in job descriptions.  The 

Constitution, Scheme of Delegation and Contract Procedure Rules clearly shows roles and 
responsibilities, specifically with regard to delegation and authorisation. 

 
5.14.3 There are various training methods available to staff such as mentoring, Ollie (On-line 

learning platform) and virtual face to face. A new leadership and management programme 
launched in January 2022 for the SMT cohort. The SDM cohort will launch in May 2022 and 
in the autumn for Team Leaders. Work is also underway to work with Directors to look at 
opportunities for apprenticeships in their areas to meet service needs, this includes upskill as 
well as new recruits. Work to review and refresh induction is underway and will be completed 
in spring 2022.  

 
5.14.4  Other support includes CPD sessions, team meetings and ongoing 1:2:1s, however results of 

the ethics questionnaires have demonstrated that a small number of staff still do not have 
regular 1:2:1 supervision meetings. 

 
5.14.5 Members receive an induction session and annual training with regard to the Treasury 

Management Strategy and other training relevant to their position.  All Members and staff 
have had the opportunity to undertake training on General Data Protection Regulations 
(GDPR) / Data Protection Act (DPA) 2018 legislation. There is also online training available 
to all staff on GDPR/DPA 18 Requirements.  

 
5.14.6 The action plan at Appendix A of this statement detail issues highlighted from the results of 

the annual governance certification process  
 
5.15 The Council continues to manage risks and performance through robust internal 

control and strong public financial management. 
 
5.15.1 Risk management is an integral part of good management and corporate governance and is 

therefore at the heart of what we do. Our approach to managing risk is explained in our Risk 
Management Strategy.  The Strategic Risk Register is reviewed by SMT and considered by 
Audit Committee annually. 

 
5.15.2 The Internal Audit plan is informed by the Council’s service and financial planning processes, 

strategic risk register, external inspection reports, external networking intelligence, comments 
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from Senior Management and their opinion of the current state of the governance risk and 
internal control arrangements.   

 
5.15.3 During 2021/22 the Internal Audit team achieved 51% of their revised planned work and this 

has been used, in part, with the relevant output from unplanned work to help form their opinion 
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk management and 
internal control framework.  
 
All recommendations made in audit reports show a risk category which is used to inform the 
overall grading of the report.    

 
5.15.4 The Chief Internal Auditor has undertaken checks on the work of Internal Audit as part of the 

Quality Assurance Improvement Program. A small number of minor issues have been 
identified through these checks and have been fed back to the Internal Audit Team to assist 
in their continuous improvement.  

 
5.15.5 Internal Audit report to the Audit Committee 4 times a year. The Audit Committee has asked 

for additional information during the year to provide assurance on the management of risks 
and implementation of recommendations. The Audit Committee have also approved the 
Internal Audit Charter for 2021/22. 

 
5.15.6 Large projects include the maintenance of a project risk register; this is an ongoing working 

document that is amended throughout the project. Where personal data is processed, 
projects also include the completion of Data Protection Impact Assessments. 

 
5.15.7 The Council has adopted the CIPFA code of practice for managing the risk of fraud and 

corruption and this has been reflected in our updated Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy and 
Whistleblowing (Speak Up) Policy. 

 
5.15.8 Services report regularly to Council committees such as Audit Committee, Planning, 

Licensing, Cabinet etc. These reports detail any impact assessment, including risk and 
opportunity. Financial decisions are reported to Cabinet, full Council and Audit Committee, 
who often challenge to ensure appropriate financial management and to demonstrate 
transparency. 

 
5.15.9 Financial Regulations set out our financial management framework for ensuring we make the 

best use of the money we have available. Financial roles and responsibilities are clearly 
shown in the Financial Regulations and it provides a framework for financial decision-making. 
The regulations have been checked against the post-Brexit legislative framework and a 
further full review is expected in 2022/23. 

 
5.15.10 The Treasury Management Strategy and regular updates on treasury matters are provided 

to Audit Committee. This information clearly show investments, loans, and the financial 
position of the Council. The Council appointed new Treasury Management advisors in 
2021/22. The new advisors are Link Treasury Services. 

 
5.15.11 The Council’s financial strategy identifies the short term budget plan and long term 

aspirational plan linked to the corporate plan to be a self-sustaining council. 
 
5.15.12 A review against the new CIPFA FM Code has been undertaken which was considered by 

the Council’s senior management team. Following this, a small number of changes are being 
implemented to further strengthen the Council’s financial management arrangements 
including making more use of scenario planning. 
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5.15.13 The Council’s External Auditors have not completed their report for 2021/22. However the 
S151 Officer and Audit & Governance Lead Manager (Chief Internal Auditor) have met with 
External Auditors periodically throughout 2021/22 and the External Auditors have commented 
that they do not expect to report any problems with the final accounts. 

 Therefore the expectation is that the External Auditors opinion will mirror the opinion for 
2020/21 which stated: 

 
“Value for Money conclusion - Based on the work we performed to address the significant risk 
we identified, we are satisfied that the Council has proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in its use of resources” 

 
An unqualified audit opinion was, once again, received by the Council in respect of 2020/21. 

 
5.15.14 The Council has continued to make savings in the light of ongoing financial pressures. 

£133.7m of ongoing savings had been delivered by the end of 2021/22 with a further £9.9m 
to be delivered by the end of 2023/24.  Forecasts of the level of savings that will be required 
from April 2023 onwards are very difficult to make in the absence of any Government funding 
settlement information beyond the March 2023 being available and potential significant 
changes that may be made to the local government finance system.  However, it is likely that 
the Council will continue to face a very challenging financial outlook for the foreseeable future.     

 
5.16 Implement good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective 

accountability 
 
5.16.1 As a public body we endeavour to be open and transparent in our activities and reporting. 

Council and committee agendas, reports and minutes are published on our corporate website 
to demonstrate decisions made.  The Council undertake public consultation on areas such 
as the budget. We publish expenditure over £100 on our website, as part of the transparency 
agenda. 

 
5.16.2 The Audit Committee has responsibility for internal and external audit matters, the Council’s 

arrangements for corporate governance and risk management. 
 
5.16.3 The Audit Committee terms of reference also incorporate the review and monitoring of the 

Council’s Treasury Management arrangements. Members of the Committee are kept up to 
date through awareness training on factors that influence/affect delivery of the strategy and 
during the year were provided with an update on these matters by Link Treasury Services, 
the Council’s Treasury Management advisors. 

 
5.16.4 There are various committees, all with their own terms of reference and areas of 

responsibility, i.e. Licensing Committee, Planning Committee, and there are elected members 
who are responsible for service areas within the Council. 

 
5.16.5 Arrangements are in place to ensure Internal Audit fully complies with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). A self-assessment of the Internal Audit function against 
the requirements of the PSIAS was undertaken in 2021/22. The results demonstrated that 
Internal Audit were compliant with the PSIAS and this was reported to the Audit Committee. 
An external assessment of PSIAS compliance has been arranged (as required by law) and 
will take place in 2022/23. 

 
5.16.6 The Internal Audit plan is developed using a risk-based approach taking into consideration 

the Strategic Risk Register, Service Plans and other audit intelligence. Audit 
recommendations made are communicated to relevant Service Delivery Managers and 
relevant Senior Management representatives for consideration and implementation of 
recommendations.  Internal Audit will share best practice in the duty of their work. The Audit 
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plan is reviewed regularly to ensure it is still relevant and any changes made are reported to 
the Audit Committee. 

 
5.16.7 The Council’s Communication Team works with Officers and Members to ensure key 

messages are easy to understand and in accessible formats to meet the diverse needs of 
our borough. 

 
5.16.8 The Council’s performance management framework is monitored by the Senior Management 

Team and has procedures in place that drive continuous improvement in performance. More 
robust reporting has taken place during 2021/22. 

 
5.16.9 The Council has identified lessons learnt from corporate complaints and complaints made to 

the Local Government Ombudsman and implemented measures accordingly. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Signed Dated 
 
David Sidaway 
Chief Executive 

 

25/05/22 

   

Cllr Shaun Davies 
Leader of the Council 

 25/05/22 

   

Cllr Nathan England 
Chair of Audit Committee 

26/05/22 
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Telford & Wrekin Council 
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Adjustments for Capital Purposes  
Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and 
revaluation gains and losses in the services line, and for:  
• Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income 

on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.  
• Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital 

financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are 
deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under 
generally accepted accounting practices.  

• Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted 
for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue 
grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without 
conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation 
and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants 
receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the 
year.  

 
Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments  
Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee 
Benefits pension related expenditure and income:  
• For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made 

by the authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs 
and past service costs.  

• For Financing and investment income and expenditure – the net interest on the 
defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES.  

 
Other Adjustments  
Other Statutory Adjustments 
Other statutory adjustments between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised 
under statute:  
• For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other statutory adjustments 

column recognises adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for 
premiums and discounts.  

• The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents 
the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax 
and NDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income 
recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing 
difference as any difference will be brought forward in future surpluses or deficits on 
the Collection Fund.  

 
Other Non-statutory Adjustments  
Other non-statutory adjustments represent amounts debited/credited to service segments 
which need to be adjusted against the ‘Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure 
and Funding Analysis’ line to comply with the presentational requirements in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:  
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Notes to the Core Financial Statements 
1. Accounting Policies 

a) General 
The accounts have been prepared in keeping with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (COP), based on International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA). This is supported by a number of detailed accounting 
recommendations including interpretations of the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and interpretations of the Standing Interpretations 
Committee (SIC). They are further supplemented by International Public Sector Accounting 
Standards (IPSAS). 
b) Concepts 
These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the all-pervading concepts of 
accruals and going concern, together with comparability, verifiability, timeliness,  
understanding of and primacy of legal requirements as set out in the COP. Under the going 
concern concept, although the Council has net current liabilities of £86.5m, it is a going 
concern as the Council has access to Public Works Loan Board borrowing and future Council 
Tax revenues. (See Note 22 for detail on interest rate risk). Local Authorities can only be 
discontinued under statute. 
c) Accruals of Expenditure & Income 
The revenue accounts of the Council are maintained on an accruals basis in accordance with 
the Code of Practice, IAS 18 and IFRS 15.  That is, sums due to or from the Council during 
the year are included whether or not the cash has actually been received or paid in the year.  
In particular,  

• Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the 
provision of goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred 
to the service recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the 
contract.  Revenue is measured as the amount of the transaction price which is 
allocated to that performance obligation. 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a 
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried 
as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

• Expenses in relation to services received are recorded as expenditure when the 
services are received rather than when payments are made. 

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate 
for the relevant financial instrument rather than cash flows fixed or determined by 
the contract. 

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet.  Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written 
down and a charge made to revenue for income not collected. 

Revenue relating to Council Tax and Business Rates is measured at the full amount 
receivable (net of any impairment losses) as they are non-contractual, non-exchange 
transactions. 
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d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Investments that are short-term are defined as highly liquid investments held at the Balance 
Sheet date that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash on the Balance Sheet date 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Under this definition 
investments held in call accounts would count as cash equivalents but fixed term 
investments and investments in notice accounts would not, as they are not readily 
convertible to cash.  
e) Contingent Asset 
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises for a past event and whose existence will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Council. The Council does not recognise 
contingent assets, but discloses its existence where inflows of economic benefits are 
probable, but not virtually certain. 

f) Contingent Liability 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence 
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events beyond the control of the Council or a present obligation that is not recognised 
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability 
that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Council does not 
recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 
g) Employee Benefits 
The accounting arrangements for Employee Benefits are covered by IAS 19. The objective 
of IAS 19 is to prescribe the accounting and disclosure for employee benefits (that is, all 
forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees). 
The principle underlying all of the detailed requirements of the Standard is that the cost of 
providing employee benefits should be recognised in the period in which the benefit is 
earned by the employee, rather than when it is paid or payable. 
 
The areas of remuneration that relate to the Council are as follows: 
• Salaries and Wages  
• Compensated Absences (paid annual leave and sick leave) 
• Pensions Benefits 
• Termination Benefits 
Salaries and Wages 
The amount of salary or wage earned by an employee will be recognised in the financial 
year to which it relates. 
Compensated Absences 
The expected cost of short-term compensated absences should be recognised as the 
employees render service that increases their entitlement or, in the case of non-
accumulating absences, when the absences occur. 
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In relation to annual leave and time off in lieu an estimation of the value of any untaken 
annual leave and the time off in lieu position at the end of the financial year will be 
undertaken and an appropriate amount included in the accounts. Sick leave is non 
accumulating and is accounted for when absences occur. 
Pensions Benefits 
The Council participates in three formal pension schemes, the Local Government Pension 
Scheme, which is administered by Shropshire County Pension Fund, the National Health 
Service Pension Scheme, administered by NHS Pensions and the Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on behalf of the DfE. 

Under International Accounting Standards and accounting Code requirements, the Council 
recognises the cost of post-employment benefits in the reported cost of services when they 
are earned by employees, rather than when benefits are eventually paid as pensions.  For 
the Local Government Pension Scheme, these costs are provided by the fund actuaries and 
are included as a cost in the financial statements.  However, statutory provision requires 
that the General Fund Balance is charged with the amount payable by the Council and not 
the amount calculated according to the accounting standard, therefore compensating entries 
are posted through the Movement in Reserves Statement which result in the General Fund 
Balance not being impacted by future pension liabilities.   

Arrangements for the Teachers’ scheme and the NHS Scheme mean that liabilities for future 
benefits cannot be separately identified for the Council and no liability for future payments 
of benefits is therefore recognised in the financial statements for these, and the employer’s 
contribution is charged to the CIES in the year. 

See Notes 11, 12 and 13. 

In accordance with International Accounting Standard No 19 – Employee Benefits (IAS 19) 
disclosures and transactions in relation to the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure 
related to pension schemes for employees are required. Valuation methods are in 
compliance with the 2021/22 COP. The information is only necessary in relation to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme, as it is not possible to identify any Authority’s share of the 
assets and liabilities under the Teachers’ scheme or the National Health Service scheme. 
The age profile of this Council’s Local Government Pension Scheme is not currently rising 
significantly, so we should not see the current liabilities of the scheme rising significantly as 
the members approach retirement. 
Termination Benefits 
Any termination benefits awarded during the financial year will be included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in that year. Where the amount has not 
been paid at the balance sheet date, a provision will be created in the accounts for that 
year. 
h) Events After the Reporting Period 
Where a material post balance sheet event occurs which 
• Provides additional evidence relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date; 

or 
• Indicates that application of the going concern concept to a material part of the 

Authority is not appropriate; 
Changes will be made in the amounts to be included in the statement of accounts or 
disclosed in a note. 
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i) Exceptional Items and Prior Period Adjustments 
Exceptional items are material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within 
the ordinary activities of the authority, and which need to be disclosed separately by virtue 
of their size or incidence if the financial statements are to give a true and fair view. 

Prior Period Adjustments relate to corrections of errors in the financial statements of prior 
periods, retrospective adjustments resulting from changes to accounting policy or adoption 
of new accounting treatments. The correct accounting treatment for prior period 
adjustments for a comparative financial statement is to restate the amount to be adjusted 
and show the impact on the accounts. Please see Note 2. 
j) Financial Instruments   
Financial Liabilities  
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at 
fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (CIES) for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, 
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the 
instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.  
 
For most of the borrowings that the authority has, this means that the amount presented 
in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and 
interest charged to the CIES is the amount payable for the year according to the loan 
agreement.  
 
Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the CIES, regulations allow the 
impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over future years. The authority has a 
policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against 
which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid. The 
reconciliation of amounts charged to the CIES to the net charge required against the 
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 
Financial Assets  
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that 
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow 
characteristics. There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:  
• amortised cost  
• fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and  
• fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)  
 
The authority’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. 
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose 
contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash 
flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument).  
 

• Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost  
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Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet 
when the authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently 
measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the 
asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the 
financial assets held by the authority, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and 
interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan 
agreement.  

 
However, the authority has made three loans to local organisations at less than 
market rates (soft loans). When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the CIES 
for the present value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the 
instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding principal.  

 
Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 
the CIES at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable 
from the organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of 
the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft 
loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial year – 
the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the CIES to the net gain 
required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  

 
Any gains and losses that arise from the de-recognition of an asset are credited or 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.  

 
• Expected Credit Loss Model  

The authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at 
amortised cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss 
model also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are 
recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the authority.  
 
Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash 
flows might not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. 
Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased 
significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a 
lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are 
assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.   

 
• Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss  

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet 
when the authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and 
losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services.  
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The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following 
techniques:  
• instruments with quoted market prices – the market price  
• other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash 

flow analysis.  
 
The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the 
following three levels:  
• Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 

assets that the authority can access at the measurement date.  
• Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that 

are observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.  
• Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.  

 
Any gains and losses that arise from the de-recognition of the asset are credited or 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

k) Government Grants and Other Contributions 
The accounting treatment of transactions within the Authority’s financial statements have 
been determined following the general principal of whether the Authority is acting as the 
Principal or Agent. Where the Authority is acting as Principal, i.e. acting on its own behalf, 
transactions have been included in the Authority’s financial statements. Where the Authority 
is acting as Agent, i.e. acting as an intermediary, transactions have not been reflected in 
the Authority’s financial statements, with the exception of cash collected or expenditure 
incurred by the agent on behalf of the principal in which case there is a debtor / creditor 
position included in financing activities in the cashflow statement. 
Where the acquisition of a fixed asset is financed either wholly or in part by a Government 
grant or other contribution, the amount of the grant or contribution is recognised in the 
comprehensive income and expenditure statement (CIES) unless there is an outstanding 
condition, where it is transferred to capital grant receipts in advance until the condition is 
met or the grant is returned. Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed 
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.   
l) Intangible Assets 
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. It must 
be controlled by the Authority as a result of past events, and future economic benefits must 
be expected to flow from the intangible asset to the Authority. Usually within local authorities 
this relates to in house developed software.  
m) Inventories and Long Term Contracts  
Stocks are valued in accordance with IAS 2 at current value with an allowance made for 
obsolescent and slow-moving items. Any long term contracts in existence at 31 March are 
apportioned to the year in relation to when the work was carried out rather than the year 
in which the contract was completed.  
n) Investment Properties  
Investment property is property (land or a building – or part of a building – or both) held 
for regeneration, economic development and investment, rather than for:  
(a) Use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or  
(b) Sale in the ordinary course of operations.  
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o) Leases  
The Council accounts for leases as Finance Leases when substantially all the risks and 
rewards relating to the ownership of the leased asset are transferred to the Council.  Leases 
that do not meet this definition are accounted for as Operating Leases.  The Council also 
operates as Lessor for its Property Investment Portfolio. 

The use of leasing, together with the amount of rentals paid during the year and the 
undischarged obligation, is explained in Note 49 to the Core Financial Statements. 

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to revenue on an accruals basis. 

The cost of assets acquired under operating leases and the related liability for future rentals 
payable are not included in the balance sheet. 
p) Non-current Assets Held for Sale  
Assets are classified as being held for sale if the following conditions are met:  
• management is committed to a plan to sell, 
• the asset is available for immediate sale,  
• an active programme to locate a buyer is initiated,  
• the sale is highly probable, within 12 months of classification as held for sale (subject 

to limited exceptions),  
• the asset is being actively marketed for sale at a sales price reasonable in relation to 

its fair value,  
• actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that plan will be 

significantly changed or withdrawn.  
q) Interests in Companies and Other Entities 
The Council has a wholly owned Company, NuPlace Ltd for the provision of market rented 
housing in the borough and is required to prepare Group Accounts.  Group Accounts have 
been prepared on a line for line basis; accounting policies are aligned between NuPlace and 
the Council; and intra-group transactions have been eliminated.  In the authority’s own 
single-entity accounts, the interest of NuPlace is recorded as a financial asset, less any 
provision for losses. 

The Council is one of four constituent authorities for the West Mercia Energy purchasing 
consortium (WME).  WME transactions are excluded from the Council’s financial statements 
on the basis that they are not material to the fair presentation of the financial position of 
the Council. Note 56 shows an extract of WME’s balance sheet at 31 March 2022.   
r) Overheads 
The revenue accounts for the various services include charges for the related support 
services.  These are agreed annually and are based on agreed criteria. Support Services are 
allocated in line with CIPFA recommended practice.  As the Code of Practice does not allow 
transactions between segments in the service analysis, internal recharges have been 
eliminated from gross income and gross expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
s) Private Finance Initiative 
PFI contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making 
available the property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services passes to the 
PFI contractor. The Council has one PFI scheme which was entered into in March 2006 and 
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is for the provision of school and leisure facilities at Hadley Learning Community and 
Queensway for £289m.  
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements requires the Council to assess the level of control 
each party has within the PFI contract.  The result of this assessment is that the Council is 
deemed to control the services that are provided under its PFI scheme and as ownership of 
the property, plant and equipment will pass to the Council at the end of the contract for no 
additional charge, the Council carries on the Balance Sheet the property, plant and 
equipment used under the contracts. 

An asset has been recognised and a long term financial lease creditor created to reflect the 
asset in the accounts and recognise the commitment to make future payments to the 
operator.  
The original recognition of this property, plant and equipment was balanced by the 
recognition of a liability for amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for the assets. 
Property, plant and equipment recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and 
depreciated in the same way as property, plant and equipment owned by the Council. 

Amounts payable to PFI operators are analysed into five elements. Fair value for the services 
received in the year (debited to the appropriate service). Finance cost (debited to interest 
payable and similar charges). Contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the 
property arising during the contract (debited to interest payable and similar charges). 
Payment toward liability (applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFI 
operator). Lifecycle replacement costs (recognised as a fixed asset on the balance sheet). 
t) Property, Plant & Equipment 
All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and 
equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis in the accounts.  Expenditure on property, 
plant and equipment is capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefits to the 
Authority and the services it provides for a period of more than one year.  This excludes 
expenditure on routine repairs and maintenance of property, plant and equipment, which is 
charged direct to service revenue accounts. 
Property, plant and equipment are valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA and in 
accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes issued by 
The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).  Property, plant and equipment are 
classified into the groupings required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
and valued on the following bases: 
• land, operational properties and other operational assets are included in the balance 

sheet at the lower of net current replacement cost or net realisable value. 
• non-operational assets and assets that are surplus to requirements, are included in the 

balance sheet at the lower of net current replacement cost or net realisable value.  In 
the case of investment properties, this is normally open market value. 

• infrastructure assets and community assets are included in the balance sheet at 
historical cost, net of depreciation. 

 
Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are planned at a maximum of three yearly 
intervals, with circa 70% of the value of all properties being completed on an annual basis.  
Material changes to asset valuations will be adjusted in the interim period, as they occur.  
Surpluses or deficits arising from revaluation are credited or debited to the revaluation 
reserve respectively as long as there is a sufficient balance on the reserve in respect of 
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deficits.  Where there is an insufficient balance or a clear consumption of economic benefits, 
deficits are charged to the income and expenditure account as impairments. 
 
Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised in the Authority’s accounts, together 
with the liability to pay future rentals.  Other assets previously acquired under advance and 
deferred purchase schemes are also recognised and included in the balance sheet. 
 
Income from the disposal of property, plant and equipment is accounted for on an accruals 
basis.  Such income that is not reserved for the repayment of external loans and forms part 
of the capital financing account, and has not been used, is included in the balance sheet as 
usable capital receipts. 
 
As at 31st March 2022 there was 1 significant capital contracts in place.  This totalled 
£6.198m and is detailed in Note 15a. 
u) Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment with a finite useful life 
(which can be determined at the time of acquisition or revaluation) according to the 
following policy: 
• newly acquired assets are depreciated from the start of the year after they are acquired, 

assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until the year after they are 
brought into use. Depreciation is applied in the year of disposal. 

• depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over its estimated life. 
• depreciation is not provided for on Investment Properties. 
v) Charges to Revenue in Respect of Property, Plant and Equipment 
General fund service revenue accounts, central support services and statutory trading 
accounts are charged with a capital charge for all property, plant and equipment used in 
the provision of services.  The total charge covers the annual provision for depreciation and 
impairments. Where there is sufficient balance in the Revaluation Reserve, impairments are 
charged there, otherwise they are charged to the Revenue Account.  The aggregate charge 
to individual services is determined on the basis of the capital employed in each service.  
w) Provisions 
The Council sets aside provisions for specific future expenses which are likely, or certain, to 
be incurred, based on the best estimate available. 
x) Reserves 
The Council maintains certain reserves to meet general, rather than specific, future 
expenditure.  The purpose of the Council’s reserves is explained in Notes 29, 30 and 31. 

The current system of capital accounting also requires the maintenance of two accounts in 
the balance sheet: 
• the revaluation reserve, which represents principally the balance of the upward 

revaluations of property, plant and equipment and; 
• the capital adjustment account, which represents amounts set aside from revenue 

resources or capital receipts to finance expenditure on property, plant and equipment 
or for the repayment of external loans and certain other financing transactions. 
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y) Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) 
Legislation allows some expenditure to be classed as capital for funding purposes when it 
does not result in an asset on the balance sheet, for example work on properties owned by 
another organisation.  This is charged to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income 
& Expenditure Account and then transferred via the Movement in Reserves Statement to 
the Capital Adjustment Account so that there is no impact on the General Fund balance. 
z) Value Added Tax 
Local Authorities pay VAT on purchases and charge VAT on supplies of goods and services. 
Usually the amount of VAT paid on purchases is greater than that received for goods and 
services and the difference is reclaimed. The figures included in the statement of accounts 
exclude VAT except in infrequent circumstances where it is not reclaimable. 
aa) Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Expenditure 
The Council is permitted by law to finance unlimited amounts of expenditure for capital 
purposes through its revenue accounts.   
ab) Interest on Surplus Funds and Balances 
All interest earned on surplus cash or funds and balances is taken to the General Fund, 
except appropriate interest that is credited to the school balances, section 106 agreements, 
commuted sums, insurance provision (Ex Shropshire Council) and certain Adult Social Care 
balances.  
ac) Capital Receipts 
Capital receipts from the disposal of assets are held in the usable capital receipts account 
until such time as they are used to finance other capital expenditure or to repay debt. During 
2021/22, the Council funded £0.804m of expenditure in its Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account from capital receipts under the Government’s flexible use of capital 
receipts announced as part of the 2015 Spending Review. 
ad) The Redemption of Debt 
The Council makes provision for the repayment of debt in accordance with the Local 
Authorities (Capital Finance & Accounting) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 and 
Explanatory Memorandum and Guidance. 

The “Minimum Revenue Provision” (MRP) is calculated on the basis of the life of the asset 
and the ultimate funding of that asset.  MRP is not charged until the year after the asset 
comes into operation. 
ae) Estimation Techniques 
Estimation techniques are methods adopted by the Authority to arrive at an estimated 
monetary amount, corresponding to the measurement bases selected for assets, liabilities, 
gains, losses and changes in reserves. An accounting policy will specify the basis on which 
an item is to be measured; where there is uncertainty over the monetary amount 
corresponding to that basis, the amount will be arrived at using an estimation technique. 
af) Heritage Assets 
Heritage assets are held or maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and 
culture. They are initially recognised at cost if this is available. If cost is not available, values 
are only included in the Balance Sheet where the cost of obtaining valuation is not 
disproportionate to the benefit derived. For the Council’s heritage assets no cost information 
is available and the cost of obtaining that value is disproportionate to the benefit. 
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A list of the Council’s Heritage assets is included in Note 19. 
 
The cost of maintenance and repair of heritage assets is written off in the year incurred.  
ag) Capitalisation Of Interest 
Following a change in guidance the Council amended its policy on capitalisation of interest 
in 2013/14. Previously all interest has been charged to revenue in the year incurred, 
however, part of this interest cost relates to capital schemes under construction. With effect 
from 1 April 2013, interest costs relating to assets under construction will be capitalised, but 
only during the construction phase of the scheme.  A threshold of £1m will be applied to 
this policy i.e. interest will only be capitalised for programme items where prudential 
borrowing exceeds £1m in year.  This change in policy will generate revenue savings in the 
short term, but these will be offset by higher debt repayments in future years spread over 
the life of the respective assets. No interest was charged to capital rather than revenue for 
the financial year 2021/22. 
ah) Accounting for Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates  
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on 
behalf of the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting 
council tax and NDR for themselves.  Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain 
a separate fund (the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in 
respect of council tax and NDR.  Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, 
billing authorities, major preceptors and central government share proportionately the risks 
and rewards that the amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than 
predicted. 
 
The Council Tax income included in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement is 
the accrued income for the year, and not the amount required under regulation to be 
transferred from the Collection Fund to the General Fund (the Collection Fund Demand). 
The difference is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account through the Movement 
in Reserves Statement.  
  
As the collection of Council Tax for preceptors (the West Mercia Police and Crime 
Commissioner, and Shropshire & Wrekin Fire & Rescue Authority) is an agency arrangement, 
the cash collected belongs proportionately to Telford & Wrekin Council as the billing 
authority and to the preceptors. This gives rises to a debtor or creditor position for the 
difference between cash collected from tax-payers and cash paid to preceptors under 
regulation. The Balance Sheet also includes the authority’s share of the year end balances 
relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts and prepayments.  
  
In relation to Non-Domestic Rates, Telford & Wrekin Council collects income due as an 
agency arrangement. As with council tax, the cash collected belongs proportionately to 
Telford & Wrekin Council as the billing authority, and to Central Government and Shropshire 
& Wrekin Fire & Rescue Authority as preceptors. This gives rise to a debtor or creditor 
position for the difference between cash collected from tax-payers and cash paid to 
preceptors under regulation. The Balance Sheet also includes the authority’s share of the 
year end balances relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, appeals 
and prepayments.  
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ai) Accounting for Local Authority Maintained Schools  
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom confirms that the 
balance of control for local authority maintained schools lies with the local authority.  The 
Code also stipulates that those schools’ assets, liabilities, reserves and cash flows are 
recognised in the local authority financial statements of the authority as if there were 
transactions, cash flows and balances of the authority.   
  
The Council has the following types of maintained schools under its control:  
• Community  
• Voluntary Aided  
• Voluntary Controlled  
• Foundation  
  
The Council recognises on balance sheet the non-current assets of schools where the Council 
legally owns the assets or where the school is in the legal ownership of a non religious body, 
on the basis that they are the assets of the school and need to be consolidated in to the 
Council’s accounts.  
  
Community schools are owned by the Council and therefore recognised on the balance 
sheet.  
  
The majority of Voluntary Aided and Voluntary Controlled schools in the Council area are 
owned by the respective Diocese. The School/Council uses the school building to provide 
education under the provisions of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998.  
  
Foundation schools owned by the Diocese are not recognised on the Council balance sheet 
as the position is the same as Voluntary Aided and Voluntary Controlled. Where ownership 
lies with the school or the school’s Governing Body the School is recognised on the Council’s 
Balance Sheet.  
  
Academy schools are not maintained schools controlled by the Council and as such are not 
accounted for in the Council’s Accounts. Schools in Council ownership (Community Schools) 
which become Academies are provided to the Academy either on a 125 year peppercorn 
lease or the freehold of land and buildings has been transferred to the Academy.  When 
schools transfer to Academy status the assets are written out of the balance sheet as at the 
date that the asset transfers.  
 
2. Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted 

and Prior Period Adjustments  
At the balance sheet date the following new standards and amendments to existing 
standards have been published and will be introduced by the 2021/22 Code of Practice of 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: 

• Annual improvement to IFRS Standards 2018-2020.  The annual IFRS improvement 
programme notes 4 changed standards –  

o IFRS 1 (first time adoption) – amendment relates to foreign operations of 
acquired subsidiaries transitioning to IFRS, 

o IAS 37 (Onerous Contracts) – clarifies the intention of the standard, 
o IFRS 16 (Leases) – amendment removes a misleading example that is not 

referenced in the Code material, and 
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o IAS 41 (Agriculture) – one of a small number if IFRS’s that are only expected 
to apply to local authorities in limited circumstances. 

• Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use (amendments to IAS 
16) 

 
There are no Prior Period Adjustments to report. 
 
3. Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Authority has had to make certain 
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. 
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:  
 

• There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for Local 
Government. However, given levels of uncommitted reserves and the long track 
record of managing significant budget reductions and sound financial management, 
the Authority has determined that this uncertainty is not sufficient to provide an 
indication that the assets of the Authority might be impaired as a result of a need to 
close facilities and reduce levels of service provision. 
 

• The Council has one PFI contract for the provision of school and leisure facilities at 
Hadley Learning Community and Queensway.  Under the requirements of IFRIC 12, 
it has been determined that the arrangements is controlled by the Council and the 
accounting policy (Note 1(s)) relating to PFI schemes has been applied. 

 
• West Mercia Energy – the Council has determined that the exclusion of WME’s 

transactions from the Council’s own accounts will not materially impact the fair 
presentation of the financial position and transactions of the Council and to the 
understanding of the Statement of Accounts by the reader.  Note 56 provides details 
of the arrangement and an extract of the balance sheet of the West Mercia Energy 
Joint Committee. 

 
• Pension Fund Liability – an actuarial evaluation of the Shropshire Local Government 

Pension Fund is undertaken every three years by the Fund actuary, Mercers, with 
annual updates in the intervening years.  The methodology used is in line with IAS 
19.  Estimates of Pension Assets and Liabilities are sensitive to actuarial assumptions 
and can vary significantly based on changes to these assumptions.   

 
• Recognition of Schools – the Council recognises the land and buildings used by 

schools in line with the provisions of the Codes of Practice.  An assessment of the 
different schools operated has been undertaken to determine the accounting 
treatment (see Note 1(ai) above). 

 
• Revenue from contracts with service recipients (IFRS 15) – IFRS 15 requires the 

Council to recognise revenue only when its obligations are delivered and accepted by 
‘service recipients’.  A service recipient is a party that has contracted with an authority 
to obtain goods or services that are an output of the authority’s normal operating 
activities in exchange for consideration. 

 
Any delay between receipt of income and performance of obligations is considered 
to be minimal and below the materiality limit for qualifying, non-statutory services. 
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Risk Management 
Shropshire Council, the administering body, has a formal risk management strategy and risk 
registers for Pension Fund Investment, Investment Pooling and Pension Administration 
within their overall Pension Strategy.  A summary of the Pension Fund’s key risks can be 
found in the Pension Fund Annual report.  The Shropshire County Pension Fund uses a 
number of techniques to manage risks within the Fund.  The Fund’s primary long term risk 
is that the Fund’s assets will fall short of its liabilities.  Therefore the aim of investment risk 
management is to minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the value of the Fund and to 
maximise the opportunity for gains across the whole portfolio.  The Fund achieves this 
through asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk (price, currency and interest 
rate risk) and credit risk to an acceptable level.  In addition, the Fund manages its liquidity 
risk to ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet the Fund’s forecast cash flows.   
 
13. Pensions Schemes Accounted for as Defined Contribution Schemes 
The Teachers’ and NHS Pension Schemes are technically Defined Benefits Schemes. 
However, the Schemes are unfunded and the Department for Education and NHS use a 
notional fund as the basis for calculating the employers’ contribution rate paid by local 
authorities. The Authority is not able to identify its share of underlying financial position and 
performance of the Scheme with sufficient reliability for accounting purposes. For the 
purposes of this Statement of Accounts, these are therefore accounted for on the same 
basis as a defined contribution scheme. 
 
Teachers Pensions Authority: 
In 2021/22 the Council paid an employer’s contribution of £7,972,712 (£7,972,757 in 
2020/21), representing 23.68% (23.68% in 2020/21) of Teachers’ pensionable pay, into the 
Teachers’ Pension Authority. The scheme provides members with defined benefits related 
to pay and service.  Contributions are set at rates determined by the Secretary of State, 
taking advice from the Scheme’s Actuary.  Changes from the most recent valuation will be 
implemented from 1 September 2021.  
 
National Health Service Pension Scheme: 
In 2021/22 the Council paid an employer’s contribution of £34,698 (£36,244 in 2020/21) 
representing 14.38% (14.38% in 2020/21) of pensionable pay into the NHS Pension 
Scheme. The scheme provides members with defined benefits related to pay and service.  
The contribution rate is determined by the Fund’s Actuary based on quadrennial actuarial 
valuations, the results of the latest valuation will be implemented in April 2021. Under 
Pension Regulations, contribution rates are set to meet 100% of the overall liabilities of the 
fund. This relates to Public Health which transferred to the Council on 1 April 2013. 
 
14. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations 

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and 
expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting 
practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the 
Authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.  The adjustments affect General 
Fund Balances and Reserves, Capital Receipts and Capital Grants Unapplied.   
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Special assumptions – Operational Property: 
• There would be no bids from Special Purchasers. 
• It is assumed that the interest being valued can be offered freely and openly in the 

market, for non specialist property, and based on existing use for specialist property. 
• There are no past changes in the physical aspects of the property or asset where the 

valuer has to assume those changes have not taken place. 
• We will ignore any impending or proposed change in the physical circumstances of 

the property, for example, a new building to be constructed or an existing building 
to be refurbished or demolished on the valuation date. 

• An anticipated change in the mode of occupation or trade at the property –  
• Planning consent has been, or will be, granted for development (including a 

change of use) at the property. We will also consider the impact of any 
conditions that may be imposed;  

• A building or other proposed development has been completed in 
accordance with a defined plan and specification;  

• The property has been changed in a defined way (e.g. removal of process 
equipment);  

• The property is vacant when, in reality, at the date of valuation it is 
occupied;  

• That a specific contract was in existence on the valuation date which had not 
actually been completed;  

• It is let on defined terms when, in reality, at the date of valuation it is 
vacant; or  

• The exchange takes place between parties where one or more has a special 
interest and that additional value, or synergistic value, is created as a result 
of the merger of the interests. 

• Damaged property –  
• Treating the property as having been re-instated (reflecting any insurance 

claims) when it has not;  
• Valuing as a cleared site with development permission assumed for the 

existing use; or  
• Refurbishment or re-development for a different use reflecting the prospects 

of obtaining the necessary development permissions. 
 

• Trade related property –  
• Accounts or records of trade would not be available to, or relied upon, by a 

prospective purchaser;  
• The business is open for trade when it is not;  
• The business is closed, when it is actually trading from the property;  
• The inventory has been removed, or is assumed to be in place when it is 

not;  
• The licences, consents, certificates and/or permits required in order to trade 

from the property are lost or are in jeopardy;  
• The business will continue to trade on its present terms, including any ties to 

the landlord for supply of liquor, gaming machines or other goods and 
services; or the valuation reflects the least cost to replace all elements of the 
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service potential of the property to the owner of the interest being valued, 
which may include the margin gained from tied wholesale supplies of goods 
or the supply of services. 

• It is assumed that there are no alterations and improvements to be carried out 
under the terms of a lease. 

• Where a valuation needs to reflect an actual or anticipated marketing constraint, 
details of that constraint must be agreed and set out in these terms of 
engagement. 

• If a property or asset cannot be freely or adequately presented to the market, the 
price is likely to be adversely affected. Before accepting instructions to advise on 
the likely effect of a constraint, we need to identify whether this arises from an 
inherent feature of the asset or interest being valued, or from the particular 
circumstances of the client. 

• If an inherent constraint exists at the valuation date, it is normally possible to 
assess its impact on value.  

• If an inherent constraint does not exist at the Valuation Date, but is a foreseeable 
consequence of a particular event or the client requests a valuation on the basis of 
a specified market restriction, the valuation will be provided on the Special 
Assumption that the constraint has arisen at the valuation date. Details of the 
nature of the constraint are to be listed here. It may also be appropriate to provide 
a valuation without the Special Assumptions in order to demonstrate its impact.  

• Any Special Assumption that specifies a time limit on disposal MUST state the 
reason for the time limit. 

• The term ‘forced sale value’ must not be used as this is not a valuation basis. The 
term is used to reflect pressure on a particular vendor to sell at or by a specific 
time. The vendor may be subject to external legal or personal factors and therefore 
the time constraint is not merely a preference of the vendor. 

• That a financial instrument is valued using a yield curve that is different from that 
which would be used by a market participant.  

• Projected values: These rely wholly on Special Assumptions and may include 
assumptions such as the state of the market in the future – yields, rental growth, 
interest rates, etc. The assumptions must be:  

• In accordance with any applicable national or jurisdictional standard.  
• Realistic and credible.  
• Clearly and comprehensively set out in the report.  

 
Lotting assumptions – Property Investment Portfolio (PIP) & Groups of Properties: 

• It is assumed that there are no physically separate properties that are occupied by 
the client where there is a functional dependence between the properties. e.g. a 
separate car park that is exclusively used by the occupier of the building. 

• Due to the nature of the business of the Council, no account will be made where the 
ownership of a number of separate properties would be of particular advantage to 
someone as a single owner, because of economies that could result from either 
increased market share or savings in administration or distribution, such as with a 
block of offices, shops, factory units, libraries, schools, or drop in or contact centres. 
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20. Revaluations and Impairment Losses 
During 2021/22, the Authority has recognised a net revaluation gain of £30.244m (2020/21 
revaluation gain £18.567m) in relation to Property, Plant & Equipment, Assets Held for Sale 
and Investment Properties.  
Revaluation gains of £39.814m will be held in the Revaluation Reserve or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Impairment losses of £9.57m will be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement where there is an insufficient balance held in the Revaluation Reserve for a 
specific asset being impaired. The charge to the CIES is then reversed out as part of the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.  
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Complexities of the NPV calculation  
It is unlikely that the future cash instalments of an instrument will fall in equal time periods 
from the date of valuation, and there is likely to be a "broken" period from the valuation 
date to the next instalment. This means that an adjustment needs to be made to each 
discount factor, in order to take account of the timing inequality. 
 
Evaluation of PWLB debt 
We have used the new borrowing rate, as opposed to the premature repayment rate, as 
the discount factor for all PWLB borrowing. This is because the premature repayment rate 
includes a margin which represents the lender's profit as a result of rescheduling the loan, 
which is not included in the fair value calculation since any motivation other than securing 
a fair price should be ignored. 
 
Inclusion of accrued interest 
The purpose of the fair value disclosure is primarily to provide a comparison with the 
carrying value in the Balance Sheet. Since this will include accrued interest as at the Balance 
Sheet date, we have also included accrued interest in the fair value calculation. This figure 
will be calculated up to and including the valuation date. 
 
Discount rates used in NPV calculation 
The rates quoted in this valuation were obtained by Link Treasury Services Ltd from the 
market on 31st March, using bid prices where applicable. 
 
Assumptions: 
It is noted that the following assumptions do not have a material effect on the fair value of 
the instrument: 

• Interest is calculated using the most common market convention, Actual Days/365. 
• Where interest is paid/received every 6 months on a day basis, the value of interest 

is rounded to 2 equal instalments. 
• For fixed term deposits it is assumed that interest is received on maturity, or annually 

if duration is > 1 year. 
• We have not adjusted the interest value and date where a relevant date occurs on a 

non-working day. 
 
Exposure to Risk 
The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: 

• credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the 
Authority. 

• liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to 
meet its commitments to make payments. 

• market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result 
of changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements. 
 

The Authority’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of 
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available 
to fund services. Risk management on investments is carried out by a central treasury team, 
under policies approved by the Council in the annual treasury management strategy. The 
Council provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies 
covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus 
cash. 
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Market risk 
Interest rate risk 
The Authority is exposed to significant risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate 
movements on its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex 
impact on the Authority. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following 
effects: 

• borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Income and 
Expenditure Account will rise. 

• borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall. 
• investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Income and 

Expenditure Account will rise. 
• investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 

 
Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings 
would not impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. However, 
changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will 
be posted to the Income and Expenditure Account and affect the General Fund Balance 
pound (£) for pound (£). Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments will be 
reflected in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. 
 
The Authority has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The policy is to 
have a maximum of 70% of its borrowings in variable rate loans. During periods of falling 
interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will 
be repaid early to limit exposure to losses. The risk of loss is ameliorated by the fact that a 
proportion of Government grant payable on financing costs will normally move with 
prevailing interest rates or the Authority’s cost of borrowing and provide compensation for 
a proportion of any higher costs. 
 
The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure 
that feeds into the setting of the annual budget and which is used to update the budget 
quarterly during the year. This allows any adverse changes to be accommodated. The 
analysis will also advise whether new borrowing taken out is fixed or variable. 
 
In line with our Treasury Strategy, the Authority has taken advantage of low level of interest 
on short-term borrowing in order to reduce cost. The Authority will continue to engage with 
our external treasury advisor, Link Treasury Services Ltd, to monitor interest rates and lock 
into long term borrowing when it is prudent to do so.  
 
Price risk 
The Authority does not generally invest in equity shares. The Authority is not consequently 
exposed to losses arising from movements in the prices of the shares. We do however hold 
shares in NuPlace however these are non-traded stocks and therefore there is no price risk. 
 
Foreign exchange risk 
The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and 
thus has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates. 
 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account – this account holds the accumulated 
difference between the financial costs included in the Income and Expenditure Account and 
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• posts where the annualised salary is £50,000 or more and who are either: statutory 
chief officers (per the Local Government and Housing Act 1989); or non-statutory 
chief officers who report directly to the Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive); or 
posts which have responsibility for management of the Authority, whether solely or 
collectively. 
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Notes 
Those roles shown in bold above represent the current posts. 

1) This post holder was appointed part way through the year 
2) Current post holder is part of the NHS Pension Scheme 
3) This post holder left part way through the year 
4) This post holder was only in post for part of the year 
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Notes 
Those roles shown in bold above represent the current posts. 

1) This post holder was appointed to Executive Director role part way through the year 
2) These post holders were appointed part way through the year 
3) Current post holder is part of the NHS Pension Scheme 
4) These post holders left part way through the year 
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of the transactions that the Authority has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing 
benefits). Grant receipts are shown in Note 41. 
 
Members 
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating 
policies. The total of members’ allowances paid in 2021/22 is shown in Note 44. Details of 
all these transactions are recorded in the Register of Members’ Interest, open to public 
inspection at the Council Offices during office hours. 
During the year transactions with related parties arose as follows: 
Councillor Shaun Davies is a member of Marches Local Enterprise Partnership (The LEP) 
as the Council nominated member to the LEP and a Telford & Wrekin Council nominated – 
Non Executive Director of Wrekin Housing Group.  The value of transaction between the 
Council and the two organisations are as follows –  
 Marches LEP    £3,328,226 
 Wrekin Housing Group £4,938,497 
Councillor Richard Overton is centre manager for Donnington Charitable Trust. The 
value of all financial transactions between Donnington Charitable Trust and Telford and 
Wrekin Council in 2021/22 is £48,021. 
Councillor’s Rae Evans and Kelly Middleton are Trustee’s for Park Lane Centre as the 
Council’s nominated representatives.  The value of transactions in 2021/22 between the two 
organisations was £61,982. 
Councillor’s Rae Evans, Kuldip Sahota, Vanessa Holt and Amrik Jhawar are 
voluntary directors of Meeting Point Trust and as such has no financial interest in the 
company. The Council makes payments to the Trust in relation to Room Hire at Meeting 
Point House and grants in relation to the COVID-19 response. During 2021/22 the Council 
made payments totalling £40,864. 
Councillor Carolyn Healy is a Director of Red Kite Network Ltd who provided services as 
part of Horsehay Pool Management and tree and ecological surveys as part of the 
development of the New College site. The value of transactions between the Council and 
Red Kite Network Ltd in 2021/22 was £12,734. 
Councillor’s Carolyn Healy and Chris Turley are Council nominated directors of Severn 
Gorge Countryside Trust. The value of all financial transactions between the Trust and the 
Council is £228,316 which includes the payment of rental incomes, £224,366, collected by 
the Council on behalf of the Trust. Neither Councillor receives remuneration or personal 
benefit for this role. 
Councillor David Wright is a Council nominated Board Member for Marches Local 
Enterprise Partnership and a Council nominated Executive for West Midlands Rail Ltd.  The 
value of transactions the Council and organisations are as follows –  
 Marches LEP   £3,328,226 
 West Midlands Rail Ltd £14,200 
Councillor Paul Watling is a Trustee of Telford & Wrekin CVS who provide Information, 
Advice and Guidance Services for adults in Telford with regard to care and support needs. 
The value of transactions between the Council and the organisation in 2021/22 was 
£600,122. 
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Group Accounts  
Introduction 
During 2015/16 the Council established a Wholly Owned Company (NuPlace Ltd) for the 
provision of market rented housing in the Borough. The company was set up primarily to 
improve standards in the private rented sector and to offer homes for life to tenants 
operated by a responsible and responsive landlord. The standard financial statements 
consider the Council only as a single entity, accounting for its interests in other organisations 
only to the extent of its investment, and not current performance and balances. Thus a full 
picture of the Council’s economic activities, financial position, service position, accountability 
for resources and exposure to risk is not presented in the Council’s single entity financial 
statements. 
 
As a result, group financial statements are produced to reflect the extent of Telford & Wrekin 
Council’s involvement with its group undertakings in order to provide a clearer picture of 
the Council’s activities as a group. The group accounts contain core financial statements 
similar to those included in the Council’s single entity statements, consolidated with figures 
from organisations considered to be part of the group.  
 
The following pages include: 

• Group Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
• Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
• Reconciliation of the Single Entity Deficit to the Group Deficit 
• Group Movement in Reserves Statement 
• Group Balance Sheet 
• Group Cash Flow Statement 
• Notes to the Group Accounts where they differ from the notes to the Single Entity 

Accounts 
 
The Narrative Report has not been replicated in the Group Accounts as the overview below 
provides a summary of NuPlace performance for 2021/22. 
 
The group financial statements are presented in accordance with the IFRS based Code.  
 
NuPlace Ltd’s property assets were valued on 31st March 2022 by Registered Valuer’s of 
Telford & Wrekin Council.  The valuations were in accordance with the required valuation 
standards.  The valuation of each property was on the basis of current value, which equates 
to the Market Value.  Investment property is initially valued at cost, and recognised once 
the entire development has been completed, and then revalued annually.  Investment 
properties are not depreciated as they are anticipated to appreciate in value.   
 
Accounting policies are aligned between the group members.   
 
The Group Accounts were audited by Grant Thornton who also audit the Council’s accounts. 
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NuPlace – 2021/22 Overview  
Nuplace Limited was incorporated on 1 April 2015. NuPlace is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Telford and Wrekin Council, limited by shares.  
 
The principal activity of the company is the procurement of the construction and 
management of private and affordable residential property for rent. In addition, the 
company aims to: 

• Raise the standard of rental provision, both in terms of the quality of the rental homes 
and the landlord service.  

• Deliver added value and stimulate local economic growth through supply chain 
engagement, offering skills and employment opportunities and working with the 
community.  

• Develop brownfield and stalled sites in order to deliver widespread regeneration 
benefits. 

 
2021/22 was the seventh year of operation for Nuplace Ltd, the Council’s wholly owned 
housing investment company. It was set up primarily to improve standards in the private 
rented sector and to offer homes for life to tenants operated by a responsible and responsive 
landlord.  The principal activity of which is the procurement of the construction and 
management of private and affordable residential property for rent.  During 2021/22, 
Nuplace established the sub brand known as Telford & Wrekin Homes, intended to acquire 
and refurbish existing housing stock, to provide a further product within the private rental 
sector, continuing to raise the bar in terms of property and tenancy management. 
 
Nuplace’s housing portfolio now comprises of 431 homes of which 45 are affordable. The 
programme has resulted in over 23 acres of brownfield land being regenerated, addressing 
sites that might otherwise blight communities. The programme is also delivering added value 
in terms of local employment, apprenticeships, supply chain development and the delivery 
of a range of community projects. 
 
Works are ongoing at Southwater Way, Telford, Nuplace’s low carbon Town Centre scheme 
of 46 housing units and the first 12 Telford & Wrekin Homes properties, seeking to bring 
old, redundant properties back into use, which are undergoing refurbishment and due to be 
completed in May 2022.   
 
In accordance with the Company’s accounting policy, the housing portfolio was revalued at 
the year end, which has resulted in an increase in value of 5% (£3.7m) over the nine 
completed sites.   

Nuplace Ltd is a separate legal entity and as such will prepare its own Statement of Accounts 
and comply with company regulations.  The accounts will be independently audited by Dyke 
Yaxley.  NuPlace Ltd’s final audited accounts will be published on the Council’s website once 
finalised. 
 
As Nuplace is wholly owned by Telford & Wrekin Council, the Council is required to prepare 
Group Accounts as part of its Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 which will consolidate the 
Council and Nuplace’s financial position.  The consolidated Group Accounts will be audited 
by Grant Thornton. 
 



144 

Nuplace distributed a final dividend of £0.01 per ordinary share registered on 16th February 
2022, totalling £163,000. The company reported an operating profit before taxation of 
£0.564m, £0.406m after tax. It should be noted that the Council has received income 
totalling £1.8m from Nuplace during 2021/22 net of additional interest and other costs which 
is a combination of interest paid relating to the loan agreement, dividend income and 
services Nuplace purchased from the Council.  The Council will also benefit from additional 
Council Tax, and New Homes Bonus as Nuplace properties are completed.  The financial 
benefits that arise from Nuplace are invested in providing front line services such as 
providing Adult Social Care and have helped to reduce the budget savings that would 
otherwise have had to been made as a result of Government grant cuts. 
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Glossary 
 
Academy Schools A school that chooses to opt out of Local Authority control and 

receives its funding direct from the Education Funding Agency 
Accounting Policies The accounts are prepared in accordance with the Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2010/11 issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountancy and comply with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) approved by the Financial 
Reporting Advisory Board. 

Accruals The concept that items of income and expenditure are 
recognised as they are earned or incurred, not as money is 
received or paid 

Balances See Reserves and Balances. 
Balance Sheet A statement of recorded assets and liabilities at a given point 

in time i.e. 31st March for Local Authorities. 
Business Rates This is the income collected from business premises in respect 

of National Non Domestic Rates. Also known as Non Domestic 
Rates (NDR) and Retained Business Rates. 

Business Rates 
Retention 

Local Government Funding scheme under which councils 
retain 50% of business rates revenue locally.   

Budget The financial statement reflecting the Council’s policies over a 
period of time i.e. what the Council is going to spend to 
provide services. 

Capital Expenditure Expenditure on items that have a life of more than one year, 
such as buildings, land, major equipment. 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

A measure of an authority’s underlying need to borrow or 
finance for a capital purpose. 

Capitalisation The means by which Government, exceptionally, permits local 
authorities to treat revenue costs as capital costs.  Permission 
is given through capitalisation directions issued by the 
Secretary of State.   

Capital Receipts The proceeds from the disposal of land or buildings, or other 
assets.  These can be used to finance new capital 
expenditure. 

Capping The Government has the power to tell Councils to set a lower 
council tax requirement if it thinks the year on year increase is 
excessive. 

CIPFA The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 
CIFPA Code of Practice Code of Practice on local authority accounting in the United 

Kingdom which specifies the principles and practices required 
to be followed when preparing the Statement of Accounts 

CIPFA/SOLACE CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government - Framework - CIPFA - the Chartered Institute of 
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Public Finance and Accountancy, have worked with SOLACE - 
the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior 
Managers, to develop the good governance framework for 
local authorities based on the "The Good Governance 
Standards for Public Services" produced by the Office for 
Public Management. 

Collection Fund A separate statutory fund maintained by the Council, as billing 
authority, which records council tax and non-domestic rates 
collected, together with payments to precepting authorities 
(Police, Fire, Parishes), the Government and the Council’s own 
General Fund. 

Comprehensive Income 
& Expenditure 
Statement (CIES) 

Summarised income and expenditure during the year by 
service area. Includes both revenue and capital items. 

Council Tax The main source of local taxation to local authorities.  Council 
tax is levied on dwellings within the local authority area by the 
billing authority. 

Creditors Represent the amount that the Council owes other parties, 
shown on the balance sheet at year end. 

Debtors Represents the amounts owed to the Council, shown on the 
balance sheet at year end. 

Depreciation The accounting term used to describe the write off of the 
reduction in value of a fixed asset due to wear and tear, 
passing of time. 

Dedicated Schools 
Grant (DSG) 

Specific ring-fenced grant allocated by the Department for 
Education for the funding of schools. 

Defined Benefit Pension 
Scheme 

Pension scheme in which the benefits received by the 
participants are independent of the contributions paid and are 
not directly related to the investments of the scheme. 

Discounts The benefit obtained from re-scheduling debt. 
Financial Year The local authority financial year commences 1 April and ends 

on the 31 March 
General Fund A statutory fund which summarises the cost of all services 

provided by the Council (with the exception of Special Fund 
detailed below).  The General Fund balance is the reserve 
held by the Council for general purposes 

Group Accounts Group Accounts have to be produced where a Council has an 
interest in another organisation, such as Nuplace, unless the 
interest is considered not material.  Group Accounts 
consolidate the financial position of the Council and all 
organisations it has an interest in (subject to materiality). 

Heritage Assets Assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, 
geophysical or environmental qualities that are held and 
maintained by the Council principally for their contribution to 
knowledge and culture.   
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International 
Accounting Standard 19 
(IAS19) 

Accounting for Retirement Benefits – local authorities are 
required to reflect the true value of the assets and liabilities 
relating to the Pension Fund in their financial statements.  
This creates a notional amount in the balance sheet and does 
not impact on council tax.  

Impairment A reduction in the value of a non-current asset below its 
carrying amount on the Balance Sheet.   

Infrastructure Assets Assets where there is no prospect of sale or alternative use, 
for example roads and footpaths. 

Intangible Assets An asset that does not exist in a physical sense but has a 
value to the Council, for example software licenses 

Investment Properties Property (land or building) which is held for economic 
regeneration purposes which also earn rentals or capital 
appreciation. 

Leases A method of funding expenditure by payment over a defined 
period of time.  An operating lease is similar to renting, the 
ownership of the asset remains with the lessor and the 
transaction does not fall within the capital control system.  
Finance leases are more akin to borrowing and do fall within 
the capital system, further a finance lease transfers 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
asset to the lessee 

LOBO A LOBO is a market loan to the Authority. LOBO stands for 
Lenders Option Borrowers Option. What this means is that the 
loan has a fixed interest rate but the lender has the option to 
increase that rate at specified intervals. If they exercise that 
option then the Authority has an option to either accept the 
new rate or repay the loan. 

Materiality A matter is material if its omission would reasonably influence 
the reader of the accounts.  Materiality is authority-specific 
and is dependent on the nature and magnitude of the items to 
which the information relates. 

MRP Minimum Revenue Provision – This is the amount charged 
against the Income and Expenditure Account for the year in 
relation to the repayment of debt on borrowing in order to 
fund capital expenditure. 

Net Book Value The amount at which non-current assets are included in the 
Balance Sheet, i.e. their historical cost or current value less 
the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 

Non Domestic Rates 
(NDR) 

This is the income collected from business premises in respect 
of National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR). Also known as Non 
Domestic Rates (NDR), Business Rates and Retained Business 
Rates. 

Outturn Actual Expenditure and Income within a particular year. 
Pension Fund An employee’s pension fund is maintained in order to make 

pension payments on retirement to participants.  It is financed 
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from contributions from the employing authority (The 
Council), the employee and investment returns. 

Post Balance Sheet 
Events 

Events, both favourable and unfavourable, which occur 
between the Balance Sheet date and the date the Statement 
of Accounts is signed by the Section 151 Officer. 

Precept Precepting authorities do not collect Council Tax and Business 
Rates directly, but instruct the Billing Authority to do so.  
Major preceptors include Shropshire & Wrekin Fire & Rescue 
Authority and West Mercia Police and Crime Commissioner.  
Parishes and Town Councils are local precepting authorities. 

Premia A penalty payment that may be incurred when debt is repaid 
early. 

Private Finance 
Initiative (PFI) 

A central Government initiative which aims to increase the 
level of funding available for public services by attracting 
private sources of finance.  PFI are agreements to receive 
services, where the responsibility for making available the 
property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services 
belongs to the PFI contractor.  The authority is deemed to 
own the assets at the end of the contract and the assets are 
therefore carried on the Balance sheet as part of PPE. 

Provisions Amounts set aside for liabilities or losses which are likely or 
certain to be incurred, but the amounts or the dates on which 
they will arise is uncertain. 

Prudential Borrowing The system which governs local authority borrowing, based on 
the requirement that capital expenditure plans are affordable, 
sustainable and prudent, as prescribed in CIPFA’s prudential 
code. 

Public Works Loans 
Board (PWLB) 

A Government agency providing long and short term loans to 
local authorities at interest rates only slightly higher than 
those at which Government itself can borrow. 

Reserves Sums set aside in reserve for specific future purposes 
Revenue Expenditure Expenditure on the day to day running costs of the Council, 

such as salaries, wages, utility costs, repairs and maintenance. 
Revenue Expenditure 
funded from Capital 
under Statute  

Legislation allows some expenditure to be classified as capital 
although it does not result in the creation of a fixed asset. 
Examples of this are grants, advances and financial assistance 
to others, costs of stock issues, expenditure on properties not 
owned by the authority and amounts directed by the 
Government. 

Revenue Support Grant 
(RSG) 

The main Government grant given to Local Authorities to 
assist in paying for local services.  The amount of RSG paid is 
calculated on the basis of a Settlement Funding Assessment, 
also determined by Government. 
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Reserves & Balances Amounts set aside to meet future expenditure.  Every local 
authority must maintain general balances as a matter of 
prudence. 

Section 151 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires that 
Council’s nominate an officer to be responsible for the proper 
administration of their financial affairs (The Chief Financial 
Officer).  For Telford & Wrekin this is the Director Finance and 
Human Resources. 

Soft Loan A loan granted at lower than the prevailing interest rate 
Special Fund Revenue 
Account  

Included in the Income And Expenditure Account but 
specifically summarises the cost of providing some specific 
services that in some areas are provided by Parish Councils 
but in others are provided by the Council. 

Special Purchaser A particular buyer for whom a certain asset has special value 
because of advantages arising from its ownership that would 
not be available to general buyers in the market. 

Trading Services A service run in a commercial style and provides services that 
are mainly funded from fees and charges levied on users. 

Variance The difference between budgeted expenditure and actual 
outturn.  Also referred to as an over or under spend. 

Virement A switch of resource from one budget head to another.  The 
rules concerning virement are contained in the Financial 
Regulations.   

 




